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Boort District Health

Since Boort District Health was established on its current site in 1961 it has played 
a key role in the provision of public health services for the community of Boort 
and surrounding districts. The Annual Report 2018-2019 is an important document 
that provides information to all stakeholders about the performance of the health 
service. The report highlights services provided as well as operational achievements 
and challenges during this financial year.

The Annual Report should be read in conjunction with Boort District Health’s 
Quality of Care Report. The document details Boort District Health’s achievements 
in many clinical, community and operational areas. The Quality of Care Report is 
produced in a calendar format to make it a useful document that will be read 
throughout the year.

Report specifications: Reporting period from 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019. This report 
is prepared for the Minister for Health, the Parliament of Victoria and the general 
public in accordance with relevant government and legislative requirements. 

We would like to acknowledge and extend our appreciation to the Dja Dja Wurrung 
Country of the Jaara People, the Traditional Owners of the land that we are standing 
on. 

We pay our respects to leaders and Elders past, present and emerging for they hold 
the memories, the traditions, the culture and the hopes of all the Jaara People. 

We express our gratitude in the sharing of this land, our sorrow for the personal, 
spiritual and cultural costs of that sharing and our hope that we may walk forward 
together in harmony and in the spirit of healing.
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Boort District Health provides a comprehensive range of multidisciplinary health 
care services to Boort and the wider community. 

BOORT DISTRICT HEALTH is a public hospital established in 1961 and is an 
incorporated body listed under Schedule 1 of the Health Services Act (1988).

The Ministers for Health during 2018–19 were: 
The Honourable Jill Hennessy, Minister for Health and Minister for Ambulance 
Services (1/07/2018 - 29/11/2018) 
Jenny Mikakos, Minister for Health and Minister for Ambulance Services (29/11/2018 
- 30/06/2019). 

The activities of the Boort District Health are directed by the Board of Directors, 
which meets regularly with its Executive staff to determine policy and planning 
direction.

ACUTE SERVICES
7 single, ensuite acute beds are provided, including one Transitional 
Care Program (TCP) bed-based bed and a family room with courtyard. 
Admission to our acute services is through the Visiting Medical Officers.

ORAL HEALTH SERVICES
Public and private oral health services are offered to the community. 
Within the public program, outreach services are offered to other 
towns. The service includes a preventative program to children and 
schools as well as oral health service to residents in care.

URGENT CARE CENTRE
Boort District Health Urgent Care Centre (UCC) offers two (2) urgent 
care treatment trolleys and one (1) treatment room, 24 hours a day, 7 
days a week. This service is supported by an on call system.

SPANNER CAFÉ
The Spanner Café is the communal hub of the Health Service, a place 
for residents, patients, clients, visitors and community to catch up over 
a cup of tea or coffee, or enjoy a delicious lunch prepared by our Café 
staff.

RESIDENTIAL AGED CARE - LODDON PLACE
Boort District Health operates twenty five (25) permanent residential 
aged care places, all single rooms with individual ensuite facilitie.

PRIMARY CARE SERVICES
A number of Allied Health services are facilitated within Boort District 
Health including Physiotherapy, Podiatry, Health Education , counselling 
and Health Promotion.

COMMUNITY AND HOME BASED CARE
Outreach community support programs are coordinated by Boort 
District Health. These include Meals on Wheels, District Nursing, 
Transitional Care Planning (TCP) and Planned Activity Groups including 
exercises, art and craft and community wellbeing programs.

ABOUT BOORT DISTRICT HEALTH
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OUR BOARD CHAIR AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

On behalf of the Board, we are pleased to present our 2018-2019 Annual Report. 
Boort District Health (BDH) has continued to embrace new opportunities, 
innovatively transforming our practice to consistently deliver safe, high-quality, 
person-centred care. The Board, Executive and staff have remained firmly focused 
on collaboratively achieving and sustaining the highest outcomes, ensuring a 
positive healthcare experience for all.  Valuing diversity and inclusion, we have 
instilled and actively promote a supportive, respectful and engaging organisational 
culture across BDH.  

The guidance and direction provided by the Board has ensured another very positive 
year. Our Board has overseen development of BDH’s Strategic Plan for 2019-2022, 
adopting a broad consultative process to capture, reflect and embed community 
expectations. Utilising an overarching “Partnerships and Collaboration” approach, 
our plan focuses on developing new and strengthening current partnerships 
with government, community and other organisations, in order to increase the 
opportunities for better health, better access and better care for our community. 
Valuing our partnerships with all stakeholders, BDH is working actively with other 
service providers across the Buloke, Loddon and Gannawarra to jointly address a 
range of priority areas.

We are committed to continually improving our facilities at BDH to enhance 
accessibility, privacy and consistently provide a safe, comfortable environment for 
our consumers, whilst ensuring an efficient, effective, safe, secure and integrated 
environment for staff. Work on the Dental Clinic Redevelopment Project has 
proceeded during the year, with the administration team relocating into refurbished 
office spaces adjacent the Day Centre in early 2019.  Completion and occupancy 
of the remaining building works, encompassing the dental clinic, consulting rooms 
and adjoining waiting areas, is scheduled for late July 2019.

In November 2018 we were advised of a successful application for $290,000, 
following a submission to the Victorian Department of Health and Human Services 
(DHHS) Rural Health Infrastructure Fund – Round 3, which will enable construction 
of on-site short-term staff accommodation, as well as purpose-built maintenance 
workshop and storage facilities.  Erection of the maintenance shed is currently 
proceeding and planning is well advanced for the staff residence, with construction 
set to commence in the latter part of 2019.

We are very proud of the untiring commitment displayed by our Board, staff 
and volunteers and we thank you all for your ongoing efforts to making safety 
and quality our absolute priority at BDH. Throughout the past year, our team 
have worked diligently together to ensure full compliance is maintained with 
all applicable standards.  We welcomed the establishment of Aged Care Quality 
and Safety Commission in January 2019 and have actively prepared for transition 
to new Aged Care Quality Standards that take effect nationally from July 2019. 
An unannounced contact visit conducted by the Aged Care Quality and Safety 
Commission in June 2019 reaffirmed our commitment to delivering safe, high-
quality care across Loddon Place. There were no recommendations arising from 
that visit. 

On behalf of the Board and Executive, we sincerely appreciate the combined support 
and commitment of all staff throughout the past year to consistently achieving 
and maintaining service excellence. Working collaboratively, our focus remains 
firmly on continually enhancing our services, targeting innovative opportunities 
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for further improvement. Hydration and nutrition have remained a key focus area 
in the past twelve months, with a number of initiatives being rolled out, including 
implementing completely overhauled menus and achieving Healthy Choices 
certification. We have also worked closely in partnership with the Royal Flying 
Doctor Service to enable local provision of specialist mental health services at BDH 
through the Flying Doctor Wellbeing program. 

Following an announcement in late July 2018 that St Anthony’s Family Medical 
Practice would cease operating the Boort Medical Practice in October 2018, BDH 
has actively pursued a range of possibilities in order to secure an ongoing medical 
presence locally. Our preferred option has been for a provider to continue to 
independently operate the Boort Medical Practice. To ensure continuity of service 
provision, an agreement was signed with Australian Health Industry Group through 
to 30 June 2019, using locum General Practitioners for the interim.  

We are very mindful that our achievements would not have been realised without the 
combined efforts of so many individuals. The Board acknowledges the exceptional 
efforts of all stakeholders associated with BDH at different levels, including our 
staff, volunteers, visiting medical officers, contractors, other service providers and 
all levels of government.  We would especially like to convey our appreciation to 
all members of our local and surrounding community for their ongoing support.  
We remain extremely grateful for the assistance provided to BDH over the past 
year by the Victorian Department of Health and Human Services and the Australian 
Government Department of Health.

We look forward to continuing to work collaboratively in partnership with everyone 
over the coming year, to not only consolidate our achievements but progressively 
enhance our services further, to improve and enrich the health and wellbeing of the 
Boort community and surrounding districts.

Mrs Wendy Gladman     Dr Darren Clarke
Board Chair       Chief Executive Officer

Responsible bodies declaration
I, Wendy Gladman, on behalf of the Responsible Body, certify that Boort District 
Health has complied with the applicable Standing Directions 2018 under the 
Financial Management Act 1994 and Instructions.

Mrs Wendy Gladman
Responsible Officer
Boort District Health
30 June 2019

OUR BOARD CHAIR AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
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BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

The Board of Directors at Boort District Health 
follows the strategic framework for boards 
developed by the Victorian Department of 
Health and Human Services. It is acknowledged 
that the board is the cornerstone of our health 
system, and the performance of health services 
depends on the quality of members who 
work on the board. The actions of boards and 
individual directors can positively influence the 
lives of all in our community. It is for this reason 
that the Board actively undertakes training and 
annually evaluates its performance.

The three priority areas for training and 
development that the Board has focused on 
during the year are:

• Clinical Governance
• Leadership
• Financial Management

The Board has established four sub-committees 
that meet at least quarterly and provide advice. 
These committees are:

• Finance, Audit and Risk Management  
    Committee
•    Board Excellence in Governance Committee
•  Community Advisory Committee
• Safety, Quality & Clinical Governance     
    Committee

Role of the Executive
The role of the Executive is to enact the 
decisions of the Board of Directors, provide 
leadership and management to the BDH staff, 
approve and oversee the implementation of 
the strategic, business and quality plans and 
to ensure the organisation operates within the 
various statutory requirements set for it by 
government and statutory bodies.
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OFFICE BEARERS / MEETING ATTENDANCE 2018 - 2019

 

Board Members

Wendy Gladman 
Marlies Eicher
Laurie Maxted 
Grant Malone
Chris Harrison
Donna 
Sherringham 
Lee-Anne 
Sherwell
Alister 
Ferguson

Marlies Eicher
Wendy Gladman 
Laurie Maxted 
Grant Malone
Chris Harrison
Donna
Sherringham 
Lee-Anne 
Sherwell
Alister Ferguson

2018

Community 
Advisory

Finance, Risk 
& Audit

Safety, Quality & 
Clinical Governance

Board 
Excellence in 
Governance

AGM 
Dec-
18

Total 
Attended

25
Jul

√

2/2

0/2

√

A

√

ABS

A

√

√

28
Aug

√

A

√

√

ABS

√

A

√

26
Sep

√

√

√

A

ABS

√

A

√

24
Oct

√

√

√

√

ABS

√

√

√

28
Nov

√

3/3

3/3

√

√

√

ABS

A

√

√

Dec

NM

NM

NM

NM

NM

NM

NM

NM

23
Jan

√

√

√

√

ABS

VC

√

TC

Feb

NM

NM

NM

NM

NM

NM

NM

NM

6
Mar

√

3/3

3/3

√

√

√

ABS

√

√

√

27
Mar

√

√

√

√

ABS

A

A

TC

24
Apr

A

√

√

√

ABS

√

√

ABS

22
May

A

√

√

√

ABS

V

√

ABS

26
Jun

√

√

√

√

ABS

√

√

ABS

√

1/1

1/1

1/1

1/1

A

1/1

1/1

√

√

√

ABS

A

ABS

A

9/11

10/11

10/11

10/11

0/11

8/11

8/11

8/11

2019

A apology   TC via Teleconference  ABS absent 
VC via Video Conference NM No Meeting Held  

Board Meeting Attendance 2018 - 2019

Committee Meeting Attendance

Board Meetings

Board 
members / 
Committees

Office Bearers
Marlies Eicher – 1 July 2012 – 30 June 2019
Alister Ferguson – 1 July 2017 – current
Wendy Gladman (Board Chair) – 1 July 2017 – current
Grant Malone – 1 July 2014 – 30 June 2019
Laurie Maxted – 26 April 2017 – current
Donna Sherringham – 26 April 2017 – 30 June 2019
Lee-Anne Sherwell – 1 July 2018 - current 
Christopher Harrison - 1 July 2016 - 30 June 2019
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REPORT OF OPERATIONS

Residential Aged Care ~ LODDON PLACE
Loddon Place offers 25 permanent aged care beds to residents with scope to flexibly 
utilise an additional 3 beds for respite, Transitional Care Program or permanent 
care as needed.

Our facility offers single rooms with individual ensuites, temperature control, 
televisions, direct line telephones, ceiling hoists for mobility, call bell access and 
outlook into one of our well established courtyards and garden areas.

Winter and summer courtyards with raised garden beds, water features, shade and 
shelter as well as BBQ and vegetable garden give our residents much to interact 
with. Loddon Place also offers a secure gopher parking bay with automatic gate 
access.

Families and visitors to Loddon Place utilise any of a number of small sitting areas 
for private time with loved ones.  Our activity room is fully equipped with kitchen 
facilities, television, bathroom and a range of activities for use for regular activities 
or by families for small gatherings or sharing a meal.  It is utilised for our regular 
resident/executive morning teas where our consumers and their representatives 
are invited to meet with executive staff to review over morning tea what is working, 
what is not and provide general feedback.

Our integrated activity program run by Sandra Poyner includes scheduled activities 
for our aged care residents across five days of the week.  It includes a regular 
program with the local Boort District School, Boort Velocity Baptist Church youths, 
Boort Playgroup and other community groups and events such as the Boort Show, 
Men’s Shed, visiting entertainers and church services, the RSL, senior citizens and 
Apex.  Residents enjoy regular outings to the main street, the library, the lake and 
surrounding sights as well as the in-house program of cooked breakfasts, bingo, 
pet therapy, music, craft, cooking and more.

Workforce Review and Design
BDH continues to recruit and retain employees across all areas of service delivery.  
Staffing is in accordance with the updated Safe Patient Care (Nurse to Patient and 
Midwife to Patient Ratios) Amendment Act 2019 and varied according to level of 
need, patient numbers as well as acute and UCC throughput.  We boast a diverse 
workforce from varying Culturally and Linguistically Diverse (CALD) backgrounds 
across all departments.

Upskilling of staff through successful grant applications sees BDH staff now being 
trained in limited radiology, Rural and Isolated Practice Endorsed Registered Nurses 
(RIPERN) and Advanced Life Support (ALS).

A close working relationship with Ambulance Victoria (AV) and a range of visiting 
locums has introduced new skills to our clinical team and along with our Director 
of Medical Services (DMS) Dr Craig Winter our knowledge and ability to triage and 
treat many and varied presentations continues to grow.

BDH participated in the Registered Undergraduate of Nursing Student (RUSON) 
pilot, which saw the introduction of a Health Service Assistant to our clinical setting 
2 days/week for a 10 month trial.

Increased relationships with tertiary educators has enabled us to increase our 
scope to host students studying not only nursing but allied health, physiotherapy, 
lifestyle and individual support.



9

Annual Report 2018 / 2019

REPORT OF OPERATIONS

Acute and UCC Services
Continuing to provide urgent care treatment our Urgent Care Centre (UCC) has had 
a total of 670 presentations this year.  Our UCC is supported by an on call system 
with VMO’s providing both on site and telephone medical advice. In the 2018-2019 
period BDH increased its use of Telehealth with great success.

Boort has now successfully embedded the use of Telehealth to ensure patients 
are not disadvantaged due to our rural location in accessing professional services 
including but not limited to eye and ear specialist, emergency physician review, 
geriatrician and aged care assessments and moving into the 2019-2020 period the 
Royal Flying Doctor telehealth services.

Associate Nurse Unit Manager (ANUM), Mubarak Meera Sahib, has continued to 
offer limited x-ray services to UCC patients with the support of Bendigo Radiology 
in receiving and reporting on images taken at BDH.

Medical Services
Dr Craig Winter, Emergency Physician St Vincent’s Hospital, provides expertise as 
our Director Of Medical Services visiting monthly to participate as chair of the 
Medical Staff committee and attends the Quality, Safety and Clinical Governance 
board subcommittee, our Medication Advisory committee and undertake case 
reviews and assist in training and education for clinical staff. The Boort Medical 
Practice provides Visiting Medical Officer (VMO) services as sourced by the current 
provider Australian Health Industry Group (AHIG) with locums delivering medical 
services to acute, urgent care, aged and community residents.

Dental Services
The co-location of dental services into the main hospital complex is almost 
complete. The service will expand early in the next reporting period to operate 
two dental chairs to both public and private dental patients. Our dentist Dr 
Manoj Mogilisetty provides exceptional emergency dental care, preventative oral 
treatments, prosthodontics, children dental health and orthodontic referrals.

The exciting redevelopment of dental includes the installation of an OPG machine 
and onsite sterilising facilities.

Community Services
BDH District Nursing delivers registered nurse services to Boort and surrounding 
district community clients five days a week with provision to weekend services 
through our UCC as required. The service includes, medication management, 
complex wound care, post-acute care, infusion pump and pain management as 
well as general health monitoring.

Planned Activity Groups run four days/week in our Day Centre.  Often the groups 
are out and about in the community or neighbouring towns enjoying meals, seeing 
shows, participating in community events or doing craft and other activities in-
house. Maree, Carmel (who has now retired) and new-comer Sally, deliver the 
following regular programs;

• Down the Street
• Creative Living
• Talk and Tucker
• Ladies and Laughs
• Film Club and
• Men on the Move
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Allied Health assistant (AHA) Deanne Smith works with the Inglewood District 
Health Physiotherapy team headed up by senior Physiotherapist Janet Cobden to 
offer weekly hydrotherapy sessions in Kerang, Staying Strong exercise groups twice 
a week, low impact exercise in our aged care facility as well as regular walking 
groups and remedial therapies as required. The 2018-2019 success story for our 
AHA has been the recruitment after student placement of Fritzie Caburnay as a 
casual employee to complement the team and ensure programs and services can 
be delivered consistently throughout the year. 

Transitional Care is offered by BDH to both bed-based and home-based clients. 
Occupancy has increased this year and BDH boasts the highest percentage 
occupancy rates of the 13 sites managed by Bendigo Health in the region. BDH 
total occupancy for the period was 132.47%, approximately 15% higher than the 
next closest provider. It is testament to the benefits of the program to be able to 
support and assist so many of our community clients with rehabilitation to optimal 
independence and return to home.  The program facilitates allied health and home 
based services as well as assessment for and purchase of aids and equipment to 
assist clients work towards agreed health care goals.

Volunteers form an invaluable part of the BDH team. Mr & Mrs Alan Everall have 
gone above and beyond to tend to our beautiful gardens and surrounds for a 
number of years and recently made the decision to retire. Their grand efforts were 
rewarded and acknowledged when they were announced as finalists in the 2019 
Minister for Health Volunteer Awards.  

Our current suite of volunteers assist across the following BDH run programs;
• Transport both locally and regionally to medical appointments.
• Escorting aged care residents on outings
• Assist with day centre programs
• Run our Monday movie afternoon and
• Deliver Meals On Wheels

REPORT OF OPERATIONS
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Support Services staff now operate an exceptional kitchen and commercial 
laundry service.  Laundry services moved to a full in-house service last year and has 
become an integral part of our service delivery.

Staff received ongoing training, education and support by our visiting Dietician 
and Speech Pathologist in diet modifications, texture modified foods, fortified 
menu planning and menu review. BDH have supported the introduction of the new 
International Dysphagia Diet Standardisation Initiative (IDDSI) changes with the 
commencement of a new fully revised six week rotating menu.

Domestic and maintenance services continue to set a high standard and BDH boast 
exceptional results with cleaning audits and positive feedback from community 
regarding our building and facilities.

The Spanner Café is now a well-known communal hub for not just the health service 
but the community in general.  The collaboration of patients, residents, visitors and 
staff at the café gives a wonderful atmosphere to the health service. During the 
year BDH achieved the HEAS (Healthy Eating Advisory Service) tick of approval in 
providing healthy options, the first health service in our area to achieve this.

REPORT OF OPERATIONS
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REPORT OF OPERATIONS

– Total revenue
– Total expenses 
– Net result from transactions
– Total other economic flows 
– Net result
– Total assets 
– Total liabilities
– Net assets/Total equity

* OPERATING RESULT

2018/19

7,364,187

7,869,888

(505,701)

(10,168)

(515,869)

16,347,257

3,357,518

19,704,775

2017/18

7,432,971

7,475,041

(42,070)

17,869

(24,201)

23,284,243

4,584,308

27,868,551

2016/17

9,520,608

7,835,925

1,684,683

2,229

1,686,912

19,469,074

2,450,798

21,919,872

2015/16

14,447,818

7,721,808

6,726,010

(25,421)

6,700,589

18,037,794

2,706,430

20,744,224

2014/15

8,392,912

7,425,685

967,227

0

967,227

11,629,342

2,998,567

14,627,909

* The Operating result is the result for which the health service is monitored in its Statement of Priorities.

Capital and specific items
Capital purpose income
Expenditure for capital purpose
Depreciation and amortisation

Net result from transactions

Net operating result *

2019 2018 2017
-$44,527.00 -$273,166.00 -$510,095.00

$313,620.00 $1,201,188.00 $3,323,569.00

-$10,168.00 -$57,117.00 -$240,218.00

-$774,794.00

-$515,869.00

-$895,106.00

-$24,201.00

-$886,344.00

$1,686,912.00

* The Net operating result is the result which the health service is monitored against in its Statement of Priorities

Financial Information

Creditors (Days)

Debtors (Patient Fees) (Days)

Cash Management/Liquidity 2018/19 Actuals

64

14
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Consultant

Porter 
Novelli
Bendigo 
Loddon 
Primary 
Care 
Partnership 
Applied 
Aged Care 
Solutions

Purpose of 
consultancy

Medical 
Clinic
2019-2022 
Strategic 
Plan 

Review of 
Aged Care 
Funding 
Instrument

Start date

10/2018

03/2019

01/07/2018

End date

12/2018 

30/06/2019

30/06/2019

Total 
approved 
project fee
(excl. GST)

$10,700 

$12,000

$10,000

Expenditure 
2018-19 
(excluding 
GST)

$10,700 

$12,000 

$10,000

Future 
expenditure
(excluding 
GST)

-

$5,000 

$10,000

Business As Usual (BAU) ICT expenditure

Total (excluding GST) $170381

Information and communication technology (ICT) expenditure (FRD 22H 5.17)

Consultancies information FRD 11(e)

REPORT OF OPERATIONS

Details of consultancies (under $10,000) 
In 2018-19, there were zero consultancies where the total fees payable to the 
consultants were less than $10,000.  

Details of consultancies (valued at $10,000 or greater) 
In 2018-19, there were three (3) consultancies where the total fees payable to the 
consultants were $10,000 or greater.  The total expenditure incurred during 2018-
19 in relation to these consultancies is $32,700 (excl. GST). Details of individual 
consultancies can be viewed at https://www.porternovelli.com/; 
blpcp.com.au; http://aacs.com.au/

The total ICT expenditure incurred during 2018-19 is $170,381 (excluding GST) with 
the details shown below:
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STATEMENT OF PRIORITIES

Mission: To enrich the health and wellbeing of our community.

Service profile
Boort District Health is a small rural health service located in central Victoria, 
providing a diverse range of health services to Boort and neighbouring communities.

Boort District health has a catchment population of approximately 3,455 people.

Boort District Health has been providing health services to the community since 
1961. Services provided include: medical inpatient care; palliative care; aged care; 
ambulatory care through the urgent care centre, general nursing and diagnostic 
monitoring services; physiotherapy services in acute, aged care and community 
settings; podiatry services in aged care and community settings; community 
outreach including district nursing, planned activity and social support services; and 
a dental chair that provides services to public and private patients and a children’s 
dental service.

A substantial redevelopment of the acute and residential care facilities at Boort 
District Health was completed in early 2017.  Additional building works planned for 
2018/19 to enable the relocation and integration of the Dental Service within the 
main healthcare complex have commenced with expected completion date August 
2019.

Strategic planning
Boort District Health Strategic Plan 2015 – 2018 is available online at www.bdh.vic.
gov.au

Strategic Priorities
In 2018-19 Boort District Health contributed to the achievement of the Government’s 
commitments by:

Goals Strategies Health Service Deliverables Outcome

Better Health
A system geared 
to prevention 
as much as 
treatment

Everyone 
understands 
their own health 
and risks

Illness is 
detected and 
managed early

Healthy 
neighbourhoods 
and communities 
encourage 
healthy lifestyles

Better Health
Reduce State-
wide Risks

Build Healthy 
Neighbourhoods

Help people to 
stay healthy

Target health 
gaps

Partner with the Buloke, Loddon 
and Gannawarra (BLG) Health 
Services Executive Network to 
design and implement integrated, 
innovative models of care to 
improve local health outcomes.

Promote better community 
understanding and ownership 
of health issues, by actively 
advocating healthy lifestyle 
choices.  

Increase referrals to the Smiles 
4 Miles program, which aims 
to improve the oral health of 
children and their families, by 
15% from the previous year. 

Pursue the co-location on site of 
locally delivered services provided 
by Northern District Community 
Health Service.

ACHIEVED
Working collaboratively 
in partnership to develop 
and progress BLG 
Health Needs Analysis 
Implementation Plan.

Ongoing health promotion 
focus across BDH.
Healthy Choices 
guidelines met for 
Spanner Café.

Increasing focus on 
provision of oral health 
initiatives specifically 
targeting children.

Construction of multi-
purpose consulting rooms 
to enable colocation of 
services.
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STATEMENT OF PRIORITIES

Goals Strategies Health Service Deliverables Outcome

Better Access
Care is always 
there when 
people need it

More access 
to care in the 
home and 
community

People are 
connected to 
the full range 
of care and 
support they 
need

There is equal 
access to care

Better Care
Target zero 
avoidable harm

Healthcare that 
focusses on 
outcomes

Patients and 
carers are active 
partners in care

Care fits 
together around 
people’s needs

Better Access
Plan and invest

Unlock 
innovation

Provide easier 
access

Ensure fair 
access

Better Care
Put Quality First

Join up care

Partner with 
patients

Strengthen the 
workforce

Embed 
evidence

Ensure equal 
care

Promote increased access to care 
in the home and community, by 
working collaboratively to ensure 
that consumers accessing our 
services obtain the most effective 
care at the right time in the most 
appropriate setting.  

Promote increased utilisation of 
telehealth services locally.

Engage with consumers to 
ensure that our services remain 
responsive to the changing needs 
of the community.  

Implement strategies based 
on results of our 2018 People 
Matters survey to further develop 
organisational culture and ensure 
that our workforce consistently 
delivers high-quality, safe care.

Provide training options for staff 
to better identify family violence 
and support appropriate effective 
interventions. 

ACHIEVED
Continuing to focus on 
ensuring equitable access 
to services.

Actively promoting use 
of telehealth services, 
including through Royal 
Flying Doctor Service.

Broad public consultation 
was undertaken during 
development of Strategic 
Plan 2019-2022.

ACHIEVED
Incorporated into 
Mandatory Training 
sessions for all staff.
Ongoing focus on ‘Above 
and Below the Line 
Behaviours’.

Additional resources 
developed and 
implemented. 
Training sessions 
conducted.
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Goals Strategies Health Service 
Deliverables 

Outcome

Specific 
2018-19 
priorities 
(mandatory)

Disability Action Plans
Draft disability action plans are 
completed in 2018-19. 

Volunteer engagement
Ensure that the health service 
executives have appropriate 
measures to engage and 
recognise volunteers.

Bullying and harassment
Actively promote positive 
workplace behaviours and 
encourage reporting. Utilise staff 
surveys, incident reporting data, 
outcomes of investigations and 
claims to regularly monitor and 
identify risks related to bullying 
and harassment, in particular 
include as a regular item in 
Board and Executive meetings. 
Appropriately investigate 
all reports of bullying and 
harassment and ensure there is 
a feedback mechanism to staff 
involved and the broader health 
service staff.

Occupational violence
Ensure all staff who have contact 
with patients and visitors have 
undertaken core occupational 
violence training, annually. 
Ensure the department’s 
occupational violence and 
aggression training principles 
are implemented.

Submit a draft 
disability action plan 
to the department by 
30 June 2019, which 
outlines the approach 
to full implementation 
within three years of 
publication. 

Implement processes 
that ensure the 
Operational 
Management Team 
actively engages with 
and recognises our 
volunteers.

Implement the Boort 
District Health People 
Matter Working 
Party action plan: 
“Towards a more 
integrated approach 
to supporting our staff 
at BDH”. Build our 
workforce capability to 
manage their health 
and wellbeing through 
the implementation of 
a workplace resilience 
program.

Provide training 
annually for all staff to 
address occupational 
violence and 
aggression incidents, 
which includes 
processes for reporting 
safety concerns and 
escalation.

ACHIEVED
Draft disability action 
plan developed and 
submitted to the 
department. 

ACHIEVED
Management Team 
are actively engaging 
with and recognising 
volunteers, with two 
volunteers nominated 
for the Minister for 
Health Awards under 
the Outstanding 
Achievement by a 
Volunteer – Better 
Care Victoria 
innovation award.

ACHIEVED
Progressively 
implementing action 
plan.

Mental Health First 
Aid training course 
provided for staff.

ACHIEVED
Training sessions 
conducted.
Online resources 
available for all staff. 
BDH are involved with 
the SRHFV and is also 
a part of the Loddon 
Family Violence 
Network.

STATEMENT OF PRIORITIES
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Goals Strategies Health Service Deliverables Outcome

Specific 
2018-19 
priorities 
(mandatory)

Environmental Sustainability
Actively contribute to the 
development of the Victorian 
Government’s policy to be 
net zero carbon by 2050 
and improve environmental 
sustainability by identifying and 
implementing projects, including 
workforce education, to reduce 
material environmental impacts 
with particular consideration 
of procurement and waste 
management, and publicly 
reporting environmental 
performance data, including 
measureable targets related to 
reduction of clinical, sharps and 
landfill waste, water and energy 
use and improved recycling.

LGBTI
Develop and promulgate 
service level policies and 
protocols, in partnership with 
LGBTI communities, to avoid 
discrimination against LGBTI 
patients, ensure appropriate 
data collection, and actively 
promote rights to free 
expression of gender and 
sexuality in healthcare settings.  
Where relevant, services 
should offer leading practice 
approaches to trans and intersex 
related interventions.

Provide training annually 
for all staff to ensure that 
environmentally sustainable 
practices are actively 
embraced across Boort 
District Health.

Provide training annually for 
all staff to ensure that Boort 
District Health is an inclusive 
service provider. Develop 
and implement an affirmative 
action policy that supports 
the appointment of a diverse 
range of staff, including staff 
who are LGBTI.

ACHIEVED
Training 
sessions 
conducted.
Online resources 
available for all 
staff.

ACHIEVED
Training 
sessions 
conducted. 
Online resources 
available for all 
staff.
BDH are a 
member of the 
Rural Rainbows 
North Central 
LGBTIQ Network

STATEMENT OF PRIORITIES
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Accreditation 

Adverse events

Infection prevention and control

Patient experience

Accreditation against the National Safety and Quality Health Service 
Standards 

Sentinel events – root cause analysis (RCA) reporting

Compliance with the Hand Hygiene Australia program

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey - data submission 

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey –  percentage of positive patient 
experience responses – Quarter 1

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey –  percentage of positive patient 
experience responses – Quarter 2

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey –  percentage of positive patient 
experience responses – Quarter 3

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey –  percentage of very positive 
responses to questions on discharge care - Quarter 1

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey –  percentage of very positive 
responses to questions on discharge care - Quarter 2

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey –  percentage of very positive 
responses to questions on discharge care - Quarter 3

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey –  patients perception of 
cleanliness – Quarter 1

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey –  patients perception of 
cleanliness – Quarter 2

Victorian Healthcare Experience Survey –  patients perception of 
cleanliness – Quarter 3

* Less than 42 responses were received for the period due to the relative size of the Health Service

Percentage of healthcare workers immunised for influenza

Full 
compliance

All RCA 
reports 
submitted 
within 30 
business days

80% 94%

Full compliance Full compliance

95% positive 
experience

Full compliance

95% positive 
experience

Full compliance

95% positive 
experience

Full compliance

75% very positive 
experience

Full compliance

75% very positive 
experience

Full compliance

75% very positive 
experience

Full compliance

70% Full compliance

70% Full compliance

70% Full compliance

80% 92%

Full 
compliance

Full compliance

0

Full complianceCompliance with the Commonwealth’s Aged Care Accreditation 
Standards

Part B: Performance priorities

Key performance indicator

Key performance indicator

Target

Target

Result

Result

STATEMENT OF PRIORITIES
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STATEMENT OF PRIORITIES

Organisational culture 

Finance

People matter survey - percentage of staff with an overall positive 
response to safety and culture questions

Operating result ($m)

Average number of days to paying trade creditors

Average number of days to receiving patient fee debtors

Adjusted current asset ratio 

Number of days of available cash

Actual number of days a health service can maintain its operations with 
unrestricted available cash, measured on the last day of each month.

Measures the accuracy of forecasting the Net result from transactions 
(NRFT) for the current financial year ending 30 June.

People matter survey – percentage of staff with a positive response to the 
question, “I am encouraged by my colleagues to report any patient safety 
concerns I may have”

People matter survey – percentage of staff with a positive response to the 
question, “Patient care errors are handled appropriately in my work area”

People matter survey – percentage of staff with a positive response to the 
question, “My suggestions about patient safety would be acted upon if I 
expressed them to my manager”

 People matter survey – percentage of staff with a positive response to 
the question, “The culture in my work area makes it easy to learn from the 
errors of others”

People matter survey – percentage of staff with a positive response to the 
question, “Management is driving us to be a safety-centred organisation”

People matter survey – percentage of staff with a positive response to the 
question, “This health service does a good job of training new and existing 
staff”

People matter survey – percentage of staff with a positive response to the 
question, “Trainees in my discipline are adequately supervised”

People matter survey – percentage of staff with a positive response to 
the question, “I would recommend a friend or relative to be treated as a 
patient here”

80%

-0.200 

60 days

60 days

0.7 or 3% 
improvement 
from health 
service base 
target

14 days

14 days

Variance  
≤ $250,000

80%

80%

80%

80%

80%

80%

80%

80% 97%

97%

-0.045

64 days

14 days

1.56

129 days

129 days

Variance 
+$156,656

97%

100%

95%

92%

100%

97%

96%

Strong governance, leadership and culture

Effective financial management

Key performance indicator

Key performance indicator

Target

Target

Result

Result
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Medical inpatients

Urgent care

Speech pathology*

Radiology

District nursing

Dietetics*

Podiatry*

TCP community based

TCP - bed based

Acute care

Primary health care

Service

Service:

Type of activity

Actual activity 2018-19 (specify unit of activity i.e. 
occasions of service/hours of service etc.)

Actual Activity 2018-19

Bed days 527

Presentations

 56 hours of service

670

Number of clients

1498

60

568 occasions of service / 283 hours of service

151

816

16

STATEMENT OF PRIORITIES
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ACTIVITIES REPORT 2018-2019

It is lovely to report on a good year as Lifestyle Co-Ordinator for BDH. We have been 
busy both in Loddon Place and joining in with participating members of the community.

Some of the many activities we had in the last 12 months include music, movies, craft, 
church, men’s shed, men’s group, memorial service, morning tea at the spanner café, 
lunch at Café Renu and The Railway Hotel, birthday celebrations, pet therapy, Christmas 
in July, football tipping, school and play group visits, library and drives, down the street, 
debutantes visiting, senior citizens lunch’s, Monday madness to Barham, Rummikub at 
BRIC, craft, Thai cooking with Su, family forums, cooked breakfasts, resident meetings, 
wine and cheese tasting, Oaks Day with the Day Centre, BBQ’s, stories out of a hat, bingo, 
Skype with family, pancakes for Shrove Tuesday, Biggest morning tea and many more.

I have made a story book for each resident for staff and visitors to read as this helps 
to know the residents background.

We have been able to purchase some lovely animal statues for the residents to 
admire in the garden, thanks to a generous donation from Boort Amity. BDH has 
also having a naming competition for the animals.

We have some new additions for Loddon Place with a realistic cat and dog for the 
residents to pat and admire.

I look forward to another successful year working with residents and their families.

Planned Activity Groups run four days a week and include a variety of activities held 
at the Day Centre as well as off-site.  Clients from the community attend programs 
to enjoy a meal and activity with others. These include games, jokes and music 
afternoons, theme days, such as footy days, bring a photo day and dress up days 
as well as many more. These are combined with outings in the local community or 
neighbouring towns enjoying meals, seeing movies or concerts and visiting places 
such as museums, farms and other places of interest. Regular programs held are; 
• Seniors group (each Tuesday)
• Talk and Tucker (monthly on a Wednesday)
• Ladies & Laughs (each Thursday)
• Men on the Move (monthly on a Wednesday)
• Staying Strong  (twice weekly as well as a session at the hydro pool in Kerang)

These groups provide social support for clients and are co-ordinated by Maree Stringer, 
Carmel Allison and Deanne Smith with suggestions and feedback from clients.

Programs also include services for community members who require transport for 
local shopping (weekly on a Friday) as well as medical appointments locally and 
specialist appointments in the region. These services are co-ordinated by Maree 
and assisted by volunteers who drive the BDH vehicles.

Volunteers form an invaluable part of our team and we are very appreciative of the 
time and efforts they give to our services. BDH currently has 40 volunteers registered 
who give their time and knowledge. Recently our volunteer gardeners, Elaine and Alan, 
who were instrumental in establishing our current gardens, have retired from their 
position.  The dedication they have shown not just to the gardens but to BDH over the 
years is commendable as they have put in countless hours of work and shown a real 
love for taking care of the garden.  As a result of this they were shortlisted for the 2019 
Minister for Health Volunteer awards.  Our current suite of volunteers are involved with;

• Assisting with Day Centre programs
• Visiting and assisting with outings in Residential Aged Care
• Transporting community clients locally and regionally to medical appointments
• Delivering Meals on Wheels
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ENVIRONMENTAL PERFORMANCE

Boort District Health is committed to improving the environmental sustainability
of our operations and minimise the environmental effects associated with our
operations to the greatest extent possible. We do this by, minimising waste, being 
responsible with our purchasing practices and monitoring BDH’s environmental
impacts.

To date Boort District Health has:
Continued use of electronic meeting program enabling us to be paperless at all 
meetings

Participation in environmental friendly processes within Boort District Health; 
such as printer cartridge and battery recycling, separation of comingled wastes 
(composting, bricks, pipes, plastics etc.) and regular waste audits

Bicycle parking and scooter facilities for staff and visitors to BDH

Installation of Solar Power to reduce dependency on the power

Installation of Solar Hot Water for all patient/resident showers with
gas boost when required

All external windows are double glazed on the new facilities

Energy efficient individual heating and cooling for all rooms

Underground water tank to collect water for use in grey water system
and garden areas

Installation of water saving devices in all showers and toilets

Garden planting – drought friendly selection watered with grey water when
possible. Automatic watering installed

Installation of energy efficient generator to power hospital during power
outages

All Lighting is set on timing system to regulate external lighting.
/Lighting is LED fluorescent tubing
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0
0

0
0
0

Workcover accepted claims with an occupational violence cause per 100 FTE
Number of accepted Workcover claims with lost time injury with an occupational violence 
cause per 1,000,000 hours worked.
Number of occupational violence incidents reported
Number of occupational violence incidents reported per 100 FTE
Percentage of occupational violence incidents resulting in a staff injury, illness or 
condition

Occupational violence statistics 2018–19

OCCUPATIONAL VIOLENCE

For the purposes of the above statistics the following definitions apply:
Occupational violence
any incident where an employee is abused, threatened or assaulted in circumstances 
arising out of, or in the course of their employment.

Incident
any incident where an employee is abused, threatened or assaulted in circumstances 
arising out of, or in the course of their employment.

Accepted Workcover claims
Accepted Workcover claims that were lodged in 2017-18.

Lost time
is defined as greater than one day.

Injury, illness or condition
This includes all reported harm as a result of the incident, regardless of whether the 
employee required time off work or submitted a claim.
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2018

22.94
5.38
4.05
19.92
0.17
1.68

54.14

2018

19.82
6.94
4.07
19.61
0.18
1.68

52.30

2019

18.72
7.80
3.27
20.56
0.11
1.70

52.16

2019

19.99
8.53
2.85
19.67
0.17
1.65

52.87

Nursing
Administration and Clerical
Medical Support
Hotel and Allied Services
Medical Officers
Ancillary Staff (Allied Health)

Grand Total

Hospitals labour category JUNE current month FTE* Average Monthly FTE**

WORKFORCE DATA

As at 30 June 2019 Boort District Health employed 111 staff equating to 52 persons 
in full-time equivalent units (FTE).

Application of employment and conduct principles
Boort District Health is committed to upholding the principles of merit and equity 
in all aspects of the employment relationship. To this end, we have policies and 
practices in place to ensure all employment related decisions, including recruitment, 
promotion, training and retention, are based on merit.

Any complaints, allegations or incidents involving discrimination, vilification, 
bullying or harassment are taken seriously and addressed. All staff are provided 
with education and training on their rights and responsibilities and are provided 
with the necessary resources to ensure equal opportunity principles are
upheld.
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STATUTORY REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

Freedom of Information Act 1982
The Freedom of Information Act provides members of the public with a means 
of obtaining information held by Boort District Health. In the majority of cases, a 
Freedom of Information (FOI) request is to gain access to a patient’s own medical 
record. In accordance with the Act an application fee is payable upon request and 
administrative charges apply.

Building Act 1993
This Act sets standards for the construction of new buildings and for the 
maintenance of existing buildings. It includes provisions to protect the safety and 
health of building users, and cost effective construction is encouraged.

During the year the following works and maintenance were undertaken to ensure 
conformity with the relevant standards:

Protected Disclosure Act 2012
The Protected Disclosure Act is designed to protect people who disclose information 
about serious wrongdoing within the Victorian public sector and to provide a 
framework for the investigation of these matters.
The Act’s key objectives are to:

• Promote a culture in which people feel safe to make disclosures;
• Protect these people from recrimination;
• Provide a clear process for investigating allegations; and
• Ensure that investigated matters are properly dealt with.

Boort District Health has a prescribed procedure in place for dealing with disclosures 
made under the Act.

A copy of the procedures are available from the BDH Privacy Officer (Protected 
Disclosure Officer) to whom all enquiries on this matter should be directed. In the 
year ended 30 June 2019 there were no disclosures made to Boort District Health 
under the Protected Disclosure Act.

Carers Recognition Act 2012
Boort District Health takes all practicable measures to ensure;

• its employees and agents have an awareness and understanding of the care 
relationship principles
• all practicable measures to ensure that persons who are in care relationships 
and who are receiving services in relation to the care relationship from the 
care support organisation have an awareness and understanding of the care 
relationship principles; and
• all practicable measures to ensure that the care support organisation and its 
employees and agents reflect the care relationship principles in developing, 
providing or evaluating support and assistance for persons in care relationships.

Number of reported OHS 
hazards / incidents 

Number of ‘lost time’ standard 
claims

Average cost per claim for the year

2016 / 172017 / 182018 / 19Details

130

11.68

$54,564.31

72

1.85

$62,639.14

145

0.68

$237,760.00

Per 100 FTE 
Employees

Per 100 FTE 
Employees

Occupational Health and Safety - Performance Indicators

Health and Safety Indicators
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Additional information available on request
Consistent with FRD 22H section 5.19 Boort District Health Service confirms 
that subject to the provisions of the Freedom of Information Act, the following 
information is retained by the Accountable Officer:
* Declarations of pecuniary interests have been duly completed by all relevant officers;
* Details of shares held by senior officers as nominee or held beneficially;
* Details of publications produced by the entity about itself, and how these can be 
obtained;
* Details of changes in prices, fees, charges, rates and levies charged by the Health 
Service;
* Details of major research and development activities undertaken by the Health 
Service that are not otherwise covered either in the report of operations or in a 
document that contains the financial statements and report of operations;
* Details of overseas visits undertaken including a summary of the objectives and 
outcomes of each visit;
* Details of major promotional, public relations and marketing activities undertaken 
by the Health Service to develop community awareness of the Health Service and 
its services;
* Details of assessments and measures undertaken to improve the occupational 
health and safety of employees;
* A general statement on industrial relations within the Health Service and details of 
time lost through industrial accidents and disputes, which is not otherwise detailed 
in the report of operations;
* A list of major committees sponsored by the Health Service, the purpose of each 
committee and the extent to which those purposes have been achieved;
* Details of all consultancies and contractors including consultants/contractors 
engaged, services provided, and expenditure committed for each engagement.

Local Jobs First Act
In August 2018, the Victorian Parliament reformed the Victorian Industry 
Participation Policy Act 2003 into the Local Jobs First Act 2003 and the FRD was 
revised to FRD 25D (April 2019).

Competitive Neutrality
Consistent with FRD 22H section 5.18 (e)Boort District Health supports the Victorian 
Government’s Competitive Neutrality Policy Victoria as outlined in the National 
Competition Policy.  We see competitive neutrality as a complimentary mechanism 
to the ongoing quest to increase operating efficiencies by way of benchmarking 
and embracing better work practices.

Safe Patient Care Act
Boort District Health has no matters to report in relation to its obligations under 
section 40 of the Safe Patient Care Act 2015.

Subsequent Events
As at the time of writing this report there were no events subsequent of the reporting 
date which by their nature and/or amount will have or may have a financial effect 
on the financial position of the entity.

STATUTORY REPORTING REQUIREMENTS
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ATTESTATIONS

Data Integrity
I, Darren Clarke, certify that Boort District Health has put it place appropriate 
internal controls and processes to ensure that reported data accurately reflects 
actual performance. Boort District Health has critically reviewed these controls and 
processes during the year.

Darren Clarke
CEO
BOORT
30 June 2019

Conflict of Interest
I, Darren Clarke, certify that Boort District Health has put in place appropriate internal 
controls and processes to ensure that it has complied with the requirements of 
hospital circular 07/2017 Compliance reporting in health portfolio entities (Revised) 
and has implemented a ‘Conflict of Interest’ policy consistent with the minimum 
accountabilities required by the VPSC. Declaration of private interest forms have 
been completed by all executive staff within Boort District Health and members of 
the board, and all declared conflicts have been addressed and are being managed. 
Conflict of interest is a standard agenda item for declaration and documenting at 
each executive board meeting.

Darren Clarke
CEO
BOORT
30 June 2019

Integrity, fraud and corruption
I, Darren Clarke, certify that Boort District Health has put it place appropriate 
internal controls and processes to ensure that Integrity, fraud and corruption risks 
have been reviewed and addressed at Boort District Health during the year.

Darren Clarke
CEO
BOORT
30 June 2019
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Compliance with Health Purchasing Victoria (HPV) Health Purchasing Policies 
Attestation
I, Darren Clarke, certify that Boort District Health has put in place appropriate 
internal controls and processes to ensure that it has complied with all requirements 
set out in the HPV Health Purchasing Policies including mandatory HPV collective 
agreements as required by the Health Services Act 1988 (Vic) and has critically 
reviewed these controls and processes during the year.

Darren Clarke
CEO
BOORT
30 June 2019
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31

Annual Report 2018 / 2019

OUR TEAM

CEO 
Dr Darren Clarke
 
Operational Services 
Manager  
Julie Walton
 
Corporate Services 
Manager 
Kathryn Velleley
 
Administration 
Sharyn O’Rourke
Stacey Streader
Emily Grinning
Gayle Smith
 
Finance 
Stacey Fernee
Wendy Last
 
Quality / OH&S 
Nicole Fuller
 
Support Services 
Helen Absalom
Amanda Mitchell
Binu Varghese
Chelsea Patterson
Cresilda Dula
Jane Gould
Jodie Curtis
Judith Perryman
Julie Wilson
Kelly Malone
Kerri Bedford
Kristen Gooding
Leona Nixon
Lindee Frost
Margaret Lanyon
Natham Wright
Robyn McConnell
Roslyn Wright
Madeleine Frost
Sally Gillings
Sally Keeble
Shaji Kurian

Sharon Martin
Sinu Varghese
Susan Dunne
Wahyuni Wahyuni

Director of Medical 
Services 
Dr Craig Winter
 
Director of Clinical 
Services 
Donna Doyle
 
Nurse Unit Manager 
Michelle Holland

District Nursing Services 
Tanya Buchanan
Michelle Lawrence
 
Clincal Services 
Amber Wood
Ann Pink
Beverley Taylor
Carmen Cauchi
Catherine Patching
Charmaine Bartlett
Darcy Harrison
Denise Murphy
Ebony Ford
Elizabeth Pashley
Elodie McKenzie
Emma Gardner
Ena Green
Jaclyn McDougall
Janessa Holland
Jeanette Long
Jennifer Withington
Joyana Jose
Judy Parker
Julie Arlow
Kaitlin Bell
Kathryn Robson
Rosalie Kelly
Kim Griffiths
Kristina Sanders
Licymol Scaria

Lois Seipolt
Lois Whykes
Maddison Barrett
Madeline Hawke
Madison Ough
Mary Loosley
Mary Noonan
Mubarak Meera Sahib
Nadine Chalmers
Narelle Vernon
Neethu Ahamed
Pauline Cooper
Richard Tierney
Rumbidzai Chasiya
Saritha Sajan
Samantha Isaac
Sharon Wright
Susan Taylor
Suwattana Chulakathappa
Tanya Pickering
Vincy Jacob
Yvonne Mannix
 
Director of Dental 
Services 
Dr Sajeev Koshy (OAM)

Dentist 
Dr Manoj Mogilisetty 
 
Dental Staff 
Brigette Yetman
Madison Emerson 
(Trainee)
Helen Tular
Karen Apostol (Trainee)
Katrina Roy
Preethy Jacob (Trainee)
Vicki Peiffer
 
Allied Health 
Deanne Smith
 
Activities 
Maree Stringer
Sandra Poyner
Carmel Allison



32

Boort District Health

LADIES AUXILIARY

I have great pleasure to present the 
annual report for 2018/2019 to CEO 
Darren Clarke and members of the 
Hospital Board of Management. 

Our member numbers remain a constant 
with a few having to leave the Auxiliary 
for personal reasons, we have been 
fortunate to gain three new members, 
especially as they are more than willing 
to help in the Shop. 

Unfortunately, I have left Boort for 
family reasons, and have purchased 
a home in Great Western. I have been 
coming back to attend meetings as 
often as possible, but it hasn’t always 
been convenient. I would sincerely 
thank our vice president, Sue Laversha, 
for chairing our meetings in my absence. 
Once again, we set up the hall and 
served meals, with the help of BDH 
kitchen staff, on the evening of the 
Annual General Meeting. The tables 
looked beautiful with fresh flowers 
and floral arrangements on the official 
tables. 

Thank you Isabel for again making and 
beautifully decorating a Christmas cake 
to raffle.  The Easter raffle was a great 
success, with sincere thanks to IGA for 
providing eggs for us.  Honi Tweddle 
again made us a quilt to be raffled and 
drawn at the last BDH AGM.  Honi, your 
efforts are appreciated as always. 

BDH CEO Darren Clarke, attends our 
monthly meetings and gives the latest 
updates on building renovations, 
the medical centre, doctors, hospital 
staffing, grants etc. In his busy schedule, 
he will always be there. Thank you 
Darren. 

Donna continues to keep us updated on 
new equipment that we have purchased 
for staff use, and is always excited to 
demonstrate to us, the uses of. 
Julie Puttick continues to dress the 
windows of the shop, which always 

receive high praise.  Val and Dot are 
continually changing the children’s 
window.  It is amazing how much is sold 
to people spotting something in the 
window, when maybe they would not 
have come in to browse. 

Our shop has averaged takings of 
almost $3,500 per month.  Considering 
there is nothing highly priced for sale, 
this is remarkable.  We are known as the 
best op shop in the district.  Thanks to 
all our ladies who volunteer their time 
to keep this happening. 

The Zoll monitor that we purchased 
for $13,629 has arrived and Donna 
has lovingly showed us its values and 
demonstrated how it worked.  We also 
purchased a new medication trolley, 
which comes up to the necessary 
requirements for safety and security. 

A portable lifter, demonstrated again 
by Donna, that can be used to lift a 
resident/patient from their chair, and 
then move them to another area, was 
another item we funded.  So simple, but 
so easy to use.   

There is still a raffle in progress for an 
outdoor table, tickets being sold at the 
shop. 

Robyn, you have had another successful 
year managing our funds as Treasurer.  
Thank you very much.  Isabel, once again, 
you have been a wonderful secretary, 
and a great help to me. And Sue for 
covering for me whilst I was on holidays 
and when I have had appointments. I 
appreciate your help and support. 

It is with sadness that this will be my 
last report, but a great deal of pride 
on behalf of all the Auxiliary members 
and their continued efforts to make it 
all happen.

NERRIDA MAJOR 
President
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DONATIONS / YEARS OF SERVICE

Charitable Gifts and Donations Tracker

Organisation

M&J Allison

John Wright

Boort Community

Bowls Fundraising night

BW & EM Barnes

Pethard Tarax Charitable Trust 

Jarklin Golf Club 

Ladies Auxiliary

Value

$60.00

$100.00

$297.98

$1,357.48

$1,500.00

$3,000.00

$10,000.00

$24,123.73

10 Years

Name Year Commenced Years

15 Years 30 Years 35 Years

Roslyn Wright
Kim Griffiths

Edna Boyle
Peg Mitchell
Elma Geirisch

1994
1994
2009

25
25
10

Jennifer Withington Sharon Martin
Sandra Poyner

Sally Keeble

2018-2019 Years of Service

Staff- years of service

Auxiliary- years of service
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LIFE GOVERNORS

Name       Month   Year

Mr. D.G. Coutts      October   1964

Mrs. E.M. Wilson      September   1972

Mrs H.E. Lanyon      September   1972

Mrs. N.M. Weaver      September   1972

Mr. L.R. Meadows      September   1972

Mr. L.F. Whitmore      September   1972

Mr. G.A. Frost       October   1974

Mr. W.N. Haw       March    1976

Mr. H.D. Cable      September   1980

Mr. W.A. Boyle      April    1985

Mr. H.F. Slatter      April    1985

Mr. K.I McKay       April    1985

Mr. E.L. Poxon       October   1989

Miss. A. Donnellon      December   1989

Mr. F.L. Boyle       December   1989

Mr. K.M. Weaver      October   1992

Mrs. F.J. Meadows      March    1995

Mr. K.M. Jeffrey      October   2000

Dr. G.C. Findlow      May    2001

Dr. J.E. Findlow      May    2001

Mr M.J.Nolan       October   2002

Mrs M.A.Birt       October   2003

Mr G.E. Arundell      October   2005

Mrs P Byrne       December   2009

Mrs M Worland      October   2011

Mrs B Jeffery       October   2011

Mr D Rees       October   2014

Mrs E. Barnes       October   2016

Mrs J Keath       October   2016
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
To the Board of Boort District Health 

Opinion I have audited the financial report of Boort District Health (the health service) which 
comprises the: 

• balance sheet as at 30 June 2019 
• comprehensive operating statement for the year then ended 
• statement of changes in equity for the year then ended 
• cash flow statement for the year then ended 
• notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting policies 
• board member's, chief executive officer's and chief finance officer's declaration. 

In my opinion the financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the health service as at 30 June 2019 and their financial performance and cash 
flows for the year then ended in accordance with the financial reporting requirements of 
Part 7 of the Financial Management Act 1994 and applicable Australian Accounting 
Standards.   

Basis for 
Opinion 

I have conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Act 1994 which incorporates the 
Australian Auditing Standards. I further describe my responsibilities under that Act and 
those standards in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section 
of my report.  

My independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. My staff and I are 
independent of the health service in accordance with the ethical requirements of the 
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in 
Victoria. My staff and I have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with the Code. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for my opinion. 

Board’s 
responsibilities 
for the 
financial 
report 

The Board of the health service is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of 
the financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Financial 
Management Act 1994, and for such internal control as the Board determines is necessary 
to enable the preparation and fair presentation of a financial report that is free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial report, the Board is responsible for assessing the health service’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless it is inappropriate to do so. 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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2 

Auditor’s 
responsibilities 
for the audit 
of the financial 
report 

As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial 
report based on the audit. My objectives for the audit are to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.  

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, I exercise 
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. I also:  

• identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the health service’s internal control 

• evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board 

• conclude on the appropriateness of the Board’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 
the health service’s ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to 
the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up 
to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause 
the health service to cease to continue as a going concern.  

• evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.  

I communicate with the Board regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that I identify during my audit. 

 

MELBOURNE 
4 September 2019 

Travis Derricott 
as delegate for the Auditor-General of Victoria 

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Boort Boort
Date: 29 August 2019 Date: 29 August 2019 Date: 29 August 2019
Boort

We authorise the attached financial statements for issue on this day.

Wendy Gladman Darren Clarke

Board Chair

Jessica Pisevski

Chief Finance OfficerChief Executive Officer

At the time of signing, we are not aware of any circumstance which would render any particulars
included in the financial statements to be misleading or inaccurate.

BOORT DISTRICT HEALTH
Financial Statements Year Ended 30 June 2019

BOARD MEMBER'S, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S AND CHIEF FINANCE 
OFFICER'S DECLARATION

The attached financial statements for Boort District Health have been prepared in accordance with
Direction 5.2 of the Standing Directions of the Assistant Treasurer under the Financial Management Act
1994, applicable Financial Reporting Directions, Australian Accounting Standards including
Interpretations, and other mandatory professional reporting requirements.

We further state that, in our opinion, the information set out in the comprehensive operating
statement, balance sheet, statement of changes in equity, cash flow statement and accompanying
notes, presents fairly the financial transactions during the year ended 30 June 2019 and the financial
position of Boort District Health at 30 June 2019.

FINANCIAL REPORT
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For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2019

2019 2018
$ $

Income from Transactions 
Operating Activities 2.1 7,235,701           7,322,327         
Non-operating Activities 2.1 128,486              110,644            
Total Income from Transactions 7,364,187          7,432,971        

Expenses from Transactions 
Employee Expenses 3.1 (4,081,604)          (3,924,474)        
Non Salary Labour Costs 3.1 (1,223,321)          (1,046,827)        
Supplies and consumables 3.1 (535,373)             (633,689)           
Depreciation 4.3 (774,794)             (895,106)           
Other Operating Expenses 3.1 (1,254,796)          (974,945)           
Total Expenses from Transactions (7,869,888)        (7,475,041)      

Net Result from Transactions - Net Operating Balance (505,701)           (42,070)           

Other Economic Flows included in Net Result
Net Gain/(Loss) on Sale of Non-Financial Assets 3.2 5,299                  27,619              
Net Gain/(Loss) on Financial Instruments at Fair Value 3.2 -                         (8,690)              
Revaluation of Long Service Leave 3.2 (19,259)               2,505                
Share of Other Economic Flows from Joint Operation 3.2 3,792                  (3,565)              
Total Other Economic Flows included in Net Result (10,168)             17,869             

Net Result for the year (515,869)           (24,201)           

Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to Net Result
Changes in Property, Plant and Equipment Revaluation Surplus 4.2(b) (258,373)             1,705,860         

Total Other Comprehensive Income (258,373)           1,705,860        

Comprehensive result for the year (774,242)           1,681,659        

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

Comprehensive Operating Statement
Boort District Health

Page 2 of 44

FINANCIAL REPORT
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Note 2019 2018
$ $

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 6.1 4,273,771 3,311,965
Receivables 5.1 517,210 373,762
Investments and Other Financial Assets 4.1 -                         2,839,714
Inventories 64,482 53,737
Other Financial Assets 80,491 68,067
Total Current Assets 4,935,954 6,647,245

Non-Current Assets
Receivables 5.1 36,443 29,902
Property, Plant & Equipment 4.2 16,310,814 16,607,096
Total Non-Current Assets 16,347,257 16,636,998
TOTAL ASSETS 21,283,211 23,284,243

Current Liabilities
Payables 5.2 334,791 687,625
Provisions 3.4 833,925 753,000
Other Liabilities 5.3 2,073,110 3,051,061
Total Current Liabilities 3,241,826 4,491,686

Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions 3.4 115,692 92,622
Total Non-Current Liabilities 115,692 92,622
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3,357,518 4,584,308
NET ASSETS 17,925,693 18,699,935

EQUITY
Property, Plant & Equipment Revaluation Surplus 4.2(f) 5,573,031 5,831,404
Restricted Specific Purpose Surplus 1,124,049 1,124,049
Contributed Capital 3,160,907 3,160,907
Accumulated Surpluses 8,067,706 8,583,575
TOTAL EQUITY 17,925,693 18,699,935

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2019
Boort District Health

Page 3 of 44

FINANCIAL REPORT



40

Boort District Health

Property, Plant 
and Equipment 

Revaluation 
Surplus

Restricted 
Special 
Purpose 
Surplus

Contributed 
Capital

Accumulated 
Surpluses / 
(Deficits)

Total

$ $ $ $ $
Balance at 1 July 2017 4,125,544         1,124,049       3,160,907       8,607,776         17,018,276 

Net result for the year -                      -                    -                    (24,201) (24,201)
Other comprehensive income for the year 1,705,860         -                    -                    -                      1,705,860         

Balance at 30 June 2018 5,831,404 1,124,049 3,160,907 8,583,575 18,699,935

Net result for the year -                      -                    -                    (515,869) (515,869)
Other comprehensive income for the year (258,373) -                    -                     - (258,373)

Balance at 30 June 2019 5,573,031 1,124,049 3,160,907 8,067,706 17,925,693

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Boort District Health
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2019

Page 4 of 44

FINANCIAL REPORT
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Note 2019 2018
$ $

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
Operating Grants from Government 5,372,866 4,791,924
Capital Grants from Government 287,311 1,071,860
Other Capital Receipts 30,774 92,815
Patient and Resident Fees Received 1,335,824 1,211,973
Donations and Bequests Received 5,178 77,070
GST Received from/(paid to) ATO 223,890 155,452
Interest and Investment Income Received 128,486 110,643
Other Receipts 66,169 18,753
Total Receipts 7,450,498 7,530,490

Employee Expenses Paid (5,034,925) (4,971,301)
Payments for Supplies & Consumables (535,373) (633,689)
Payments for Medical Indemnity Insurance (13,478) (14,673)
Finance Costs (19,737) (7,299)
Payment for share of Rural Health Alliance (16,530) (7,131)
Other Payments (1,998,825) (752,257)
Total Payments (7,618,868) (6,386,350)

Net Cash Flows from/(used in) Operating Activities 8.1 (168,370) 1,144,140

Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
Purchase of Non-Financial Assets (742,744) (384,701)
Proceeds from Disposal of Investments 2,845,572           1,822,214
Proceeds from disposal of Non-Financial Assets 5,299                  27,619
Net Cash Flows from/(used in) Investing Activities 2,108,127 1,465,132

Cash Flows from Financing Activities 
Receipt of Accommodation Deposits 72,158 630,000
Repayment of Accommodation Deposits (1,050,109) (797,887)
Net Cash Flows from/(used in) Financing Activities (977,951) (167,887)

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents Held 961,806 2,441,385

Cash and Cash Equivalents at beginning of financial year 3,311,965 870,580

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 6.1 4,273,771 3,311,965

This Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Boort District Health
Cash Flow Statement 
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2019

Page 5 of 44

FINANCIAL REPORT
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Boort District Health
Notes to the Financial Statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2019

Basis of preparation
These financial statements are in Australian dollars and the historical cost convention is used unless a different
measurement basis is specifically disclosed in the note associated with the item measured on a different basis.
The accrual basis of accounting has been applied in preparing these financial statements, whereby assets, liabilities,
equity, income and expenses are recognised in the reporting period to which they relate, regardless of when cash is
received or paid. 

Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Statement of Compliance

 (b)  Reporting Entity 
The financial statements include all the controlled activities of Boort District Health. 
Its principal address is: 
31 Kiniry Street
Boort VIC 3537

(c) Basis of Accounting Preparation and Measurement

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis (refer to Note 8.8 Economic Dependency).

The financial statements, except for cash flow information, have been prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.
Under the accrual basis, items are recognised as assets, liabilities, equity, income or expenses when they satisfy the
definitions and recognition criteria for those items, that is, they are recognised in the reporting period to which they
relate, regardless of when cash is received or paid.
Judgements, estimates and assumptions are required to be made about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on professional judgements derived from historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting financial information satisfies
the concepts of relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of the underlying transactions or other
events is reported.
The accounting policies have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2019, and the
comparative information presented in these financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018.

These financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, the functional and presentation currency of Boort District
Health.

All amounts shown in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest thousand dollars, unless otherwise
stated. Minor discrepancies in tables between totals and sum of components are due to rounding.
The Boort District Health operates on a fund accounting basis and maintains three funds: Operating, Specific Purpose and
Capital Funds.

A description of the nature of Boort District Health’s operations and its principal activities is included in the report of
operations, which does not form part of these financial statements.

These annual financial statements represent the audited general purpose financial statements for Boort District Health and 
its controlled entities for the year ended 30 June 2019. The report provides users with information about the Health 
Service’s stewardship of resources entrusted to it.

These financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with the
Financial Management Act 1994 and applicable AASBs, which include interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting
Standards Board (AASB). They are presented in a manner consistent with the requirements of AASB 101 Presentation of
Financial Statements.

The financial statements also comply with relevant Financial Reporting Directions (FRDs) issued by the Department of
Treasury and Finance, and relevant Standing Directions (SDs) authorised by the Assistant Treasuer.
The Health Service is a not-for-profit entity and therefore applies the additional AUS paragraphs applicable to "not-for-
profit" Health Services under the AASBs.

Page 6 of 44
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Boort District Health 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended 30 June 2019

Note 1 – Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

•      The fair value of land, buildings and plant and equipment (refer to Note 4.2 Property, Plant and Equipment);
•      Defined benefit superannuation expense (refer to Note 3.5 Superannuation); and 

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Commitments and contingent assets and liabilities are presented on a gross basis.
(d)  Jointly Controlled Operation

•      its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly; 
•      any liabilities including its share of liabilities that it had incurred; 
•      its revenue from the sale of its share of the output from the joint operation;
•      its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the operation; and
•      its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred jointly.

(e) Equity
Contributed Capital

Specific Restricted Purpose Surplus

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities
which are recoverable from, or payable to the ATO, are presented as operating cash flow.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in future periods that
are affected by the revision. Judgements and assumptions made by management in the application of AABSs that have
significant effects on the financial statements and estimates relate to: 

•     Employee benefit provisions are based on likely tenure of existing staff, patterns of leave claims, future salary
movements and future discount rates (refer to Note 3.4 Employee Benefits in the Balance Sheet).

Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not
recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). In this case the GST payable is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.
Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST
recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included with other receivables or payables in the Balance Sheet. 

The Specific Restricted Purpose Surplus is established where Boort District Health has possession or title to the funds but
has no discretion to amend or vary the restriction and/or condition underlying the funds received.

Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

In respect of any interest in joint operations, Boort District Health recognises in the financial statements:

Boort District Health is a member of the Loddon Mallee Rural Health Alliance Joint Venture and retains joint control over the
arrangement, which it has classified as a joint operation (refer to Note 8.7 Jointly Controlled Operations)

Consistent with the requirements of AASB 1004 Contributions, contributions by owners (that is, contributed capital and its
repayment) are treated as equity transactions and, therefore, do not form part of the income and expenses of the Boort
District Health. 
Transfers of net assets arising from administrative restructurings are treated as distributions to or contributions by owners.
Transfers of net liabilities arising from administrative restructurings are treated as distributions to owners. 
Other transfers that are in the nature of contributions or distributions or that have been designated as contributed capital
are also treated as contributed capital.

Page 7 of 44
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Note: 2 Funding Delivery of Our Services

Boort District Health also receives income from the supply of services.

Structure
2.1 Income from Transactions

Boort District Health is predominantly funded by accrual based grant funding for the provision of outputs. The health service also
receives income from the supply of services.

Boort District Health's overall objective is to deliver programs and services that support and enhance the wellbeing of all Victorians.
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Note 2.1: Income from Transactions 

2019 2018
$ $

 
Government Grants - Operating 5,381,806           4,800,864
Government Grants - Capital 287,311              1,112,520           
Other Capital purpose income (including capital donations) 30,774               58,544               
Patient and Resident Fees 1,330,234           1,175,083           
Commercial Activities 1 67,359               53,633               
Other Revenue from Operating Activities (including non-capital donations) 138,217              121,683             
Total Income from Operating Activities 7,235,701        7,322,327        

Other Interest 128,486              110,644             
Total Income from Non-Operating Activities 128,486           110,644           

Total Income from Transactions 7,364,187        7,432,971        
 

Dividend Revenue
Dividend revenue is recognised when the right to receive payment is established. Dividends represent the income arising from Boort
District Health's investments in financial assets.

•     The Victorian Managed Insurance Authority non-medical indemnity insurance payments are recognised as revenue following
advice from the Department of Health and Human Services

Interest revenue is recognised on a time proportionate basis that takes into account the effective yield of the financial asset, which
allocates interest over the relevant period.

Other income is recognised as revenue when received. Other income includes recoveries for salaries and wages and external services
provided, and donations and bequests. If donations are for a specific purpose, they may be appropriated to a surplus, such as the
specific restricted purpose surplus.

Resources received free of charge or for nominal consideration are recognised at their fair value when the transferee obtains control
over them, irrespective of whether restrictions or conditions are imposed over the use of the contributions, unless received from
another Health Service or agency as a consequence of a restructuring of administrative arrangements. In the latter case, such
transfer will be recognised at carrying amount. Contributions in the form of services are only recognised when a fair value can be
reliably determined and the service would have been purchased if not received as a donation.

Revenue from commercial activities such as property rental and cafeteria income are recognised on an accrual basis.

Patient and resident fees are recognised as revenue on an accrual basis.

•     Long Service Leave (LSL) revenue is recognised upon finalisation of movements in LSL liability in line with the long service leave
funding arrangements set out in the relevant Department of Health and Human Services Hospital Circular

Other Income

Interest Revenue

Revenue from Commercial Activities

Fair value of assets and services received free of charge or for nominal consideration

Patient and Resident Fees

1. Commercial activities represent business activities which health service enter into to support their operations.

Revenue Recognition

Amounts disclosed as revenue are, where applicable, net of returns, allowances and duties and taxes.

The Department of Health and Human Services makes some payments on behalf of health services as follows:

Income is recognised in accordance with AASB 118 Revenue and is recognised as to the extent that it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to Boort District Health and the income can be reliably measured at fair value. Unearned income at reporting date is
reported as income received in advance.

Government Grants and Other Transfers of Income (other than contributions by owners)
In accordance with AASB 1004 Contributions, government grants and other transfers of income (other than contributions by owners)
are recognised as income when Boort District Health gains control of the underlying assets irrespective of whether conditions are
imposed on Boort District Health’s use of the contributions.

The Department of Health and Human Services makes certain payments on behalf of Boort District Health. These amounts have been
brought to account as grants in determining the operating result for the year by recording them as revenue.

Contributions are deferred as income in advance when Boort District Health has a present obligation to repay them and the present
obligation can be reliably measured.

Non-cash contributions from the Department of Health and Human Services
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Note 3: The cost of delivering our services

Structure
3.1 Expenses from Transactions
3.2 Other Economic Flows
3.3 Analysis of expenses and revenue by internally managed and restricted specific purpose funds
3.4 Employee benefits in the Balance Sheet
3.5 Superannuation

This section provides an account of the expenses incurred by Boort District Health in delivering services and outputs. In Note 2, the
funds that enable the provision of services were disclosed and in this note the cost associated with provision of services are
recorded. 
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Note 3.1: Expenses from Transactions 

2019 2018
$ $

Salaries and Wages 4,081,604           3,924,474           
On-costs 866,600              709,344              
Agency Expenses 59,938                96,505                
Fee for Service Medical Officer Expenses 229,230              168,707              
Workcover Premium 67,553                72,271                

Total Employee Expenses 5,304,925         4,971,301         
Drug Supplies 34,978                32,338                
Medical and Surgical Supplies (including Prostheses) 161,629              184,090              
Diagnostic and Radiology Supplies 5,558                  4,426                  
Other Supplies and Consumables 333,208              412,835              

Total Supplies and Consumables 535,373            633,689            
Fuel, Light, Power and Water 172,057              144,327              
Repairs and Maintenance 90,769                53,231                
Maintenance Contracts 50,834                40,953                
Medical Indemnity Insurance 13,478                14,673                
Other Administrative Expenses 927,658              679,062              
Expenditure for Capital Purposes -                         42,699                

Total Other Operating Expenses 1,254,796         974,945            
Depreciation and Amortisation  (refer Note 4.3) 774,794              895,106              

Total Other Non-Operating Expenses 774,794            895,106            

Total Expenses from Transactions 7,869,888         7,475,041         

•      Agency expenses;
•      Fee for service medical officer expenses;
•      Work cover premium.
Supplies and consumables

Supplies and consumables - Supplies and services costs which are recognised as an expense in the reporting period in which they are
incurred. The carrying amounts of any inventories held for distribution are expensed when distributed.

Expenses are recognised as they are incurred and reported in the financial year to which they relate.

Other operating expenses generally represent the day-to-day running costs incurred in normal operations and include such things as: 

Non-operating expenses

Other non-operating expenses generally represent expenditure for outside the normal operations such as depreciation and amortisation,
and assets and services provided free of charge or for nominal consideration.

The Department of Health and Human Services also makes certain payments on behalf of Boort District Health. These amounts have been
brought to account as grants in determining the operating result for the year by recording them as revenue and also recording the related
expense.

•     Expenditure for capital purposes (represents expenditure related to the purchase of assets that are below the capitalisation
threshold). 

Other Operating Expenses

•      Fuel, light and power
•      Repairs and maintenance
•      Other administrative expenses

Employee Expenses
Employee expenses include:
•      Salaries and wages (including fringe benefits tax, leave entitlements, termination payments);
•      On-costs;
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Note 3.2:  Other economic flows included in net result

2019 2018
$ $

Net gain/(loss) on sale of non‑financial assets   
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of property plant and equipment 5,299               27,619              
Total net gain/(loss) on non‑financial assets 5,299              27,619            
Net gain/(loss) on financial instruments at fair value
Bad debts written off unilaterally -                      (8,690)              
Total net gain/(loss) on financial instruments at fair value -                      (8,690)            
Share of other economic flows from Joint Operations
Share of net profits/(losses) of joint entities, excluding dividends 3,792               (3,565)              
Total Share of other economic flows from Joint Operations 3,792              (3,565)            
Other gains/(losses) from other economic flows
Net gain/(loss) arising from revaluation of long service liability (19,259)            2,505               
Total other gains/(losses) from other economic flows (19,259)          2,505              

Total gains/(losses) from other economic flows (10,168)          17,869            

Net gain/ (loss) on non-financial assets

Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments at fair value

Other gains/ (losses) from other economic flows

Other economic flows are changes in the volume or value of an asset or liability that do not result from transactions. Other
gains/(losses) from other economic flows include the gains or losses from:

•      Revaluation gains/ (losses) of non-financial physical assets (Refer to Note 4.2 Property plant and equipment.)

•     transfer of amounts from the reserves to accumulated surplus or net result due to disposal or derecognition or
reclassification.

•     the revaluation of the present value of the long service leave liability due to changes in the bond rate movements,
inflation rate movements and the impact of changes in probability factors; and

•     impairment and reversal of impairment for financial instruments at amortised cost refer to Note 4.1 Investments and
other financial assets; and

Net gain/ (loss) on non-financial assets and liabilities includes realised and unrealised gains and losses as follows:

•      Net gain/ (loss) on disposal of non-financial assets
•      Any gain or loss on the disposal of non-financial assets is recognised at the date of disposal.

Other gains/ (losses) include:

Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments at fair value includes:
•      realised and unrealised gains and losses from revaluations of financial instruments at fair value;

•      disposals of financial assets and derecognition of financial liabilities.

•     reclassified amounts relating to available-for-sale financial instruments from the reserves to net result due to a
disposal or derecognition of the financial instrument. This does not include reclassification between equity accounts due to
machinery of government changes or ‘other transfers’ of assets.

•      the revaluation of the present value of the long service leave liability due to changes in the bond interest rates; and
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Inventories

2019 2018 2019 2018
Commercial Activities $ $ $ $
Medical Clinic 252,858 74,365 39,162 33,729
Cafeteria 6,379 6,653 28,198 19,904
Total 259,237 81,018 67,360 53,633

Note 3.2:  Other economic flows included in net result (continued)

Expense Revenue

Note 3.3: Analysis of Expense and Revenue by Internally Managed and Restricted 
Specific Purpose Funds 

Inventories include goods and other property held either for sale, consumption or for distribution at no or nominal
cost in the ordinary course of business operations. It excludes depreciable assets.

Inventories held for distribution are measured at cost, adjusted for any loss of service potential. All other inventories,
including land held for sale, are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Inventories acquired for no cost or nominal considerations are measured at current replacement cost at the date of
acquisition.

The basis used in assessing loss of service potential for inventories held for distribution include current replacement
cost and technical or functional obsolescence. Technical obsolescence occurs when an item still functions for some or
all the tasks it was originally acquired to do, but no longer matches existing technologies. Functional obsolescence
occurs when an item no longer functions the way it did when it was first acquired.

Fair Value of Assets, Services  Provided Free of Charge or for Nominal Consideration
Contributions of resources provided free of charge or for nominal consideration are recognised at their fair value
when the transferee obtains control over them.
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Note 3.4: Employee Benefits in the Balance Sheet
2019 2018

$ $
CURRENT PROVISIONS
Employee Benefits (i)
Annual Leave
- Unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months (ii) 340,756              306,871              
- Unconditional and expected to be settled after 12 months (iii) 57,556                54,810                

Accrued Day Off
- Unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months (ii) 7,632                  6,797                  
- Unconditional and expected to be settled after 12 months (iii) 1,285                  1,155                  

Long Service Leave
- Unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months (ii) 100,719              94,753                
- Unconditional and expected to be settled after 12 months (iii) 238,250              214,669              

746,198            679,055            

Provisions related to employee benefit on-costs
- Unconditional and expected to be settled within 12 months (ii) 52,587                43,694                
- Unconditional and expected to be settled after 12 months (iii) 35,140                30,251                

87,727              73,945              

TOTAL CURRENT PROVISIONS 833,925            753,000            

NON-CURRENT PROVISIONS
Conditional Long Service Leave (iii) 103,418              83,178                
Provisions related to employee benefits on-costs (iii) 12,274                9,444                  
TOTAL NON-CURRENT PROVISIONS 115,692            92,622              

TOTAL PROVISION 949,617            845,622            

ii The amounts disclosed are nominal amounts.
iii The amounts disclosed are discounted to present values.

(a) Employee Benefits and Related On-Costs 2019 2018
$ $

Current Employee Benefits and Related On-Costs
Annual Leave Entitlements 398,312              361,681              
Accrued Days Off 8,917                  7,952                  
Unconditional Long Service Leave Entitlements 338,969              309,422              
Current On-Costs 87,727                73,945                

Non-Current Employee Benefits and Related On-Costs
Conditional Long Service Leave Entitlements (iii) 103,418              83,178                
Non-Current On-Costs (iii) 12,274                9,444                  

TOTAL EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND RELATED ON-COSTS 949,617            845,622            

(b) Movements in Provisions 2019 2018
$ $

Movement in Long Service Leave:
Balance at start of year 475,989              437,973              
Provision made during the year 145,664              121,323              
Settlement made during the year (79,265)               (83,307)               
Balance at end of year 542,388            475,989            

i Employee benefits consist of amounts for accrued days off, annual leave and long service leave accrued by 
employees, not including on-costs.
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Note 3.4: Employee Benefits in the Balance Sheet (continued)

On-Costs Related to Employee Benefits

Termination Benefits

Provision for on-costs such as workers compensation and superannuation are recognised separately from provisions for employee
benefits.

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date or when an employee decides to
accept an offer of benefits in exchange for the termination of employment.

Conditional LSL is disclosed as a non-current liability. Any gain or loss followed revaluation of the present value of non-current LSL
liability is recognised as a transaction, except to the extent that a gain or loss arises due to changes in estimations e.g. bond rate
movements, inflation rate movements and changes in probability factors which are then recognised as other economic flows.

Provision is made for benefits accruing to employees in respect of accrued days off, annual leave and long service leave for services
rendered to the reporting date as an expense during the period the services are delivered.

Employee Benefit Recognition

•      Present value – if Boort District Health does not expect to wholly settle within 12 months.
•      Nominal value – if Boort District Health expects to wholly settle within 12 months; or
The components of this current LSL liability are measured at:

The liability for long service leave (LSL) is recognised in the provision for employee benefits.
Long Service Leave
Present value – if Boort District Health does not expect to wholly settle within 12 months.
Nominal value – if Boort District Health expects to wholly settle within 12 months; or

The amount recognised as a liability is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at reporting
date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. 

Provisions

Annual Leave and Accrued Days Off

Depending on the expectation of the timing of settlement, liabilities for annual leave and accrued days off are measured at:

Unconditional LSL is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements as a current liability even where the Boort District Health does
not expect to settle the liability within 12 months because it will not have the unconditional right to defer the settlement of the
entitlement should an employee take leave within 12 months. An unconditional right arises after a qualifying period.

Liabilities for annual leave and accrued days off are recognised in the provision for employee benefits as 'current liabilities' because
Boort District Health does not have an unconditional right to defer settlements of these liabilities.

Provisions are recognised when Boort District Health has a present obligation, the future sacrifice of economic benefits is probable,
and the amount of the provision can be measured reliably.
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Note 3.5: Superannuation

2019 2018
$ $

Defined Benefits plans:
First State Super ¹ 14,907               14,520
Defined Contribution plans:
First State Super 297,041             294,972
HESTA Super 85,396               73,827
Other 25,566               15,698
TOTAL 422,910            399,017

Defined Benefit Superannuation Plans

Defined Contribution Superannuation Plans

¹ The basis for determining the level of contributions is determined by the various actuaries of the defined benefit
superannuation plans.
Employees of Boort District Health are entitled to receive superannuation benefits and it contributes to both defined
benefit and defined contribution plans. The defined benefit plan provides benefits based on years of service and final
average salary.

The name, details and amounts that have been expensed in relation to the major employee superannuation funds and
contributions made by Boort District Health are disclosed above.

In relation to defined contribution (i.e. accumulation) superannuation plans, the associated expense is simply the
employer contributions that are paid or payable in respect of employees who are members of these plans during the
reporting period. Contributions to defined contribution superannuation plans are expensed when incurred.

However superannuation contributions paid or payable for the reporting period are included as part of employee benefits 
in the Comprehensive Operating Statement of Boort District Health. 

Boort District Healths does not recognise any unfunded defined benefit liability in respect of the plans because the
Health Service has no legal or constructive obligation to pay future benefits relating to its employees; its only obligation
is to pay superannuation contributions as they fall due. The Department of Treasury and Finance discloses the State’s
defined benefits liabilities in its disclosure for administered items.

The amount charged to the Comprehensive Operating Statement in respect of defined benefit superannuation plans
represents the contributions made by Boort District Health to the superannuation plans in respect of the services of
current Boort District Health’s staff during the reporting period. Superannuation contributions are made to the plans
based on the relevant rules of each plan and are based upon actuarial advice.
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Note 4: Key Assets to Support Service Delivery

Structure
4.1 Investments and Other Financial Assets
4.2 Property, Plant & Equipment
4.3 Depreciation 

Boort District Health controls infrastructure and other investments that are utilised in fulfilling its objectives and conducting its
activities. They represent the key resources that have been entrusted to the Health Service to be utilised for delivery of those
outputs.
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Note 4.1: Investments and Other Financial Assets

2019 2018 2019 2018
$ $ $ $

CURRENT
Term Deposit
Aust. Dollar Term Deposits -                     2,839,714      -                     2,839,714      
TOTAL CURRENT -                    2,839,714 -                    2,839,714

Represented by:
Accommodation Bonds Held -                     2,839,714      -                     2,839,714      
TOTAL INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS -                    2,839,714    -                    2,839,714    

•     Has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

•     Boort District Health retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full
without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass through’ arrangement; or 

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised
when: 

All financial assets, except for those measured at fair value through the Comprehensive Operating Statement are subject to
annual review for impairment.

Boort District Health's controlled entities manage their investments in accordance with their own investment policy as approved by
their Board and their investments are consolidated into Boort District Health for reporting purposes as it is the ultimate beneficiary
of Boort District Health Foundation.

The above valuation process was used to quantify the level of impairment (if any) on the portfolio of financial assets as at year
end.

In order to determine an appropriate fair value as at 30 June 2019 for its portfolio of financial assets, Boort District Health and its
controlled entities used the market value of investments held provided by the portfolio managers.

Where the fair value of an investment in an equity instrument at balance date has reduced by 20 percent or more than its cost
price or where its fair value has been less than its cost price for a period of 12 or more months, the financial asset is treated as
impaired.

At the end of each reporting period, Boort District Health assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. All financial instrument assets, except those measured at fair value through the
Comprehensive Income Statement, are subject to annual review for impairment.

Where Boort District Health has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards or transferred control, the
asset is recognised to the extent of Boort District Health’s continuing involvement in the asset.

Impairment of Financial Assets

Investment Recognition

•      Has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or 

Capital Total

•      The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or 

Investments are classified as loans and receivables or available-for-sale financial assets.

Boort District Health's investments must comply with Standing Direction 3.7.2 - Treasury Management, including Central Banking
System. 

The Boort District Health classifies its other financial assets between current and non-current assets based on the Board’s intention
at balance date with respect to the timing of disposal of each asset. Boort District Health assesses at each balance sheet date
whether a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

Investments are recognised and derecognised on trade date where purchase or sale of an investment is under a contract whose
terms require delivery of the investment within the timeframe established by the market concerned, and are initially measured at
fair value, net of transaction costs. 

Derecognition of Financial Assets 

•      Boort District Health has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either: 
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Note 4.2: Property, plant and equipment
Initial Recognition

Revaluations of Non-Current Physical Assets

Fair value measurement

The Valuer-General Victoria (VGV) is Boort District Health’s independent valuation agency.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Valuation hierarchy

•      Level 1 – quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 

Identifying unobservable inputs (level 3) fair value measurements

Revaluation decrements are recognised in ‘Other Comprehensive Income’ to the extent that a credit balance exists in the
asset revaluation surplus in respect of the same class of property, plant and equipment.

Level 3 fair value inputs are unobservable valuation inputs for an asset or liability. These inputs require significant
judgement and assumptions in deriving fair value for both financial and non-financial assets.

•     Level 3 – valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

•     Level 2 – valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable; and 

In determining fair values a number of inputs are used. To increase consistency and comparability in the financial
statements, these inputs are categorised into three levels, also known as the fair value hierarchy. The levels are as
follows:

In addition, Boort District Health determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole)
at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, Boort District Health has determined classes of assets on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. 

In accordance with FRD 103H, Boort District Health's non-current physical assets were assessed to determine whether
revaluation of the non-current physical assets was required.

Revaluation surplus is not transferred to accumulated funds on de-recognition of the relevant asset, except where an
asset is transferred via contributed capital.

Revaluation increases and revaluation decreases relating to individual assets within an asset class are offset against one
another within that class but are not offset in respect of assets in different classes. 

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured initially at cost and subsequently revalued at fair value less
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss. Where an asset is acquired for no or nominal cost, the cost is its fair
value at the date of acquisition. Assets transferred as part of a merger/machinery of government change are transferred
at their carrying amounts.

Revaluation increments are recognised in ‘Other Comprehensive Income’ and are credited directly to the asset
revaluation surplus, except that, to the extent that an increment reverses a revaluation decrement in respect of that
same class of asset previously recognised as an expense in net result, the increment is recognised as income in the net
result.

Non-current physical assets are measured at fair value and are revalued in accordance with FRD 103H Non-Current
Physical Assets. This revaluation process normally occurs every five years, based upon the asset's Government Purpose
Classification, but may occur more frequently if fair value assessments indicate material changes in values. Independent
valuers are used to conduct these scheduled revaluations and any interim revaluations are determined in accordance
with the requirements of the FRDs. Revaluation increments or decrements arise from differences between an asset’s
carrying value and fair value.

Land and buildings are recognised initially at cost and subsequently measured at fair value less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment loss.

Theoretical opportunities that may be available in relation to the asset(s) are not taken into account until it is virtually
certain that any restrictions will no longer apply. Therefore, unless otherwise disclosed, the current use of these non-
financial physical assets will be their highest and best uses.

The initial cost for non-financial physical assets under finance lease is measured at amounts equal to the fair value of the
leased asset or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the
lease.

The cost of a leasehold improvement is capitalised as an asset and depreciated over the shorter of the remaining term of
the lease or the estimated useful life of the improvements.
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Note 4.2: Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Consideration of highest and best use (HBU) for non-financial physical assets

Non-Specialised Land, Non-Specialised Buildings 

Specialised Land and Specialised Buildings

Vehicles

Plant and Equipment

There were no changes in valuation techniques throughout the period to 30 June 2019. 
For all assets measured at fair value, the current use is considered the highest and best use.

The market approach is also used for specialised land and specialised buildings although it is adjusted for the community
service obligation (CSO) to reflect the specialised nature of the assets being valued. Specialised assets contain significant,
unobservable adjustments; therefore these assets are classified as Level 3 under the market based direct comparison
approach.

Plant and equipment (including medical equipment, computers and communication equipment and furniture and fittings) are
held at carrying amount (depreciated cost). When plant and equipment is specialised in use, such that it is rarely sold other
than as part of a going concern, the depreciated replacement cost is used to estimate the fair value. Unless there is market
evidence that current replacement costs are significantly different from the original acquisition cost, it is considered unlikely
that depreciated replacement cost will be materially different from the existing carrying amount. 

The Boort District Health acquires new vehicles and at times disposes of them before completion of their economic life. The
process of acquisition, use and disposal in the market is managed by the Health Service who set relevant depreciation rates
during use to reflect the consumption of the vehicles. As a result, the fair value of vehicles does not differ materially from
the carrying amount (depreciated cost).

An independent valuation of Boort District Health’s specialised land and specialised buildings was performed by the Valuer-
General Victoria. The valuation was performed using the market approach adjusted for CSO. The effective date of the
valuation is 30 June 2019.

For Boort District Health, the depreciated replacement cost method is used for the majority of specialised buildings,
adjusting for the associated depreciation. As depreciation adjustments are considered as significant and unobservable inputs 
in nature, specialised buildings are classified as Level 3 for fair value measurements.

The CSO adjustment is a reflection of the valuer’s assessment of the impact of restrictions associated with an asset to the
extent that is also equally applicable to market participants. This approach is in light of the highest and best use
consideration required for fair value measurement, and takes into account the use of the asset that is physically possible,
legally permissible and financially feasible. As adjustments of CSO are considered as significant unobservable inputs,
specialised land would be classified as Level 3 assets. 

Unobservable inputs are used to measure fair value to the extent that relevant observable inputs are not available, thereby
allowing for situations in which there is little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability at the measurement date.
However, the fair value measurement objective remains the same, i.e., an exit price at the measurement date from the
perspective of a market participant that holds the asset or owes the liability. Therefore, unobservable inputs shall reflect the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, including assumptions about risk.

During the reporting period, Boort District Health held Crown Land. The nature of this asset means that there are certain
limitations and restrictions imposed on its use and/or disposal that may impact their fair value.

Specialised land includes Crown Land which is measured at fair value with regard to the property’s highest and best use
after due consideration is made for any legal or physical restrictions imposed on the asset, public announcements or
commitments made in relation to the intended use of the asset. Theoretical opportunities that may be available in relation
to the assets are not taken into account until it is virtually certain that any restrictions will no longer apply. Therefore,
unless otherwise disclosed, the current use of these non-financial physical assets will be their highest and best use.

For non-specialised land and non-specialised buildings, an independent valuation was performed by the Valuer-General
Victoria to determine the fair value using the market approach. Valuation of the assets was determined by analysing
comparable sales and allowing for share, size, topography, location and other relevant factors specific to the asset being
valued. An appropriate rate per square metre has been applied to the subject asset. The effective date of the valuation is
30 June 2019.

Non-specialised land and non-specialised buildings are valued using the market approach. Under this valuation method, the
assets are compared to recent comparable sales or sales of comparable assets which are considered to have nominal or no
added improvement value.

In accordance with paragraph AASB 13.29, Boort District Health has assumed the current use of a non-financial physical
asset is its HBU unless market or other factors suggest that a different use by market participants would maximise the
value of the asset.

Judgements about highest and best use must take into account the characteristics of the assets concerned, including
restrictions on the use and disposal of assets arising from the asset’s physical nature and any applicable
legislative/contractual arrangements.

For land and buildings, Countrywide Valuers is Boort District Health's independent valuer. 

Page 20 of 44

FINANCIAL REPORT



57

Annual Report 2018 / 2019

Boort District Health 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended 30 June 2019

(a) Gross carrying amount and accumulated depreciation
2019 2018

$ $
Land
 - Land at Fair Value 805,961 343,000
 - Landscaping at Fair Value 90,500 11,964 
        Less Accumulated Depreciation  - (1,082)
Total Land 896,461 353,882 

Buildings
 - Buildings at Fair Value 13,736,500 15,126,037 

      Less Accumulated Depreciation  -  - 
Total Buildings 13,736,500 15,126,037 

Plant and Equipment
 - Plant and Equipment at Fair Value 1,395,083 1,377,946 

      Less Accumulated Depreciation (796,045) (690,141)
 - Loddon Mallee Rural Health Alliance at Fair Value 30,983 31,311 

      Less Accumulated Depreciation (17,575) (17,740)
Total Plant and Equipment 612,446 701,376 

Motor Vehicles
 - Motor Vehicles at Fair Value 215,471 210,016 

      Less Accumulated Depreciation (158,392) (142,835)
Total Motor Vehicles 57,079 67,181

Computers and Communication
 - Computers and Communication at Fair Value 79,103 79,103

      Less Accumulated Depreciation (57,362) (34,690)
Total Computers and Communications 21,741 44,413

Furniture and Fittings
 - Furniture and Fittings at Fair Value 173,161 173,161 

      Less Accumulated Depreciation (86,837) (70,015)
Total Furniture and Fittings 86,324 103,146 

Work In Progress
Work In Progress at Cost - Buildings 900,263 211,061 
Total Work In Progress 900,263 211,061 

TOTAL PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16,310,814 16,607,096

Note 4.2: Property, Plant and Equipment
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Note 4.2: Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

(b) Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of each class of asset

Land Buildings Plant & Furniture & Computer Motor Work in Total
Equipment Fittings Equip Vehicles Progress

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $
Balance at 1 July 2017 354,360 11,585,627 748,810 117,550 67,146 35,943 2,456,621    15,366,057
Additions -                 -                   54,715 2,267 -                 50,453 277,266         384,701         
Transfers In/(out) -                 2,563,486     -                 -                 -                 -                 (2,563,486) -                   
Indirect Contribution from Government -                 -                   -                 -                 -                 -                 40,660 40,660           
Loddon Mallee Rural Health Alliance -                 -                   11,576 -                 -                 -                 -                    11,576           
Disposals -                 -                   0 -                 -                 (6,652) -                    (6,652)
Revaluation increments/(decrements) -                 1,705,860     -                 -                 -                 -                 -                    1,705,860
Depreciation (see Note 4.3) (478) (728,936) (113,725) (16,671) (22,733) (12,563) -                    (895,106)
Balance at 30 June 2018 353,882 15,126,037 701,376 103,146 44,413 67,181 211,061       16,607,096
Additions -                 -                   17,137 -                 -                 36,405 689,202 742,744         
Transfers In/(out) -                 -                   -                 -                 -                 -                 -                    -                   
Loddon Mallee Rural Health Alliance -                 -                   2,578          -                 -                 -                 -                    2,578            
Disposals -                 -                   -                 -                 -                 (8,437) -                    (8,437)
Revaluation increments/(decrements) 543,056 (801,429) -                 -                 -                 -                 -                    (258,373)
Depreciation (see Note 4.3) (477) (588,108) (108,645) (16,822) (22,672) (38,070) -                    (774,794)
Balance at 30 June 2019 896,461 13,736,500 612,446 86,324 21,741 57,079 900,263 16,310,814

Land and Buildings and Leased Assets Carried at Valuation

The Valuer-General Victoria undertook to re-value all of Boort District Health owned and leased land and buildings to determine their fair value. The valuation, which conforms 
to Australian Valuation Standards, was determined by reference to the amounts for which assets could be exchanged between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length 
transaction. The valuation was based on independent assessments. The effective date of the valuation is 30 June 2019.
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Note 4.2: Property, plant & equipment (continued)

(c) Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets

Level 1 (i) Level 2 (i) Level 3 (i)

Balance at 30 June 2019 $ $ $ $
Land at fair value
Non-specialised land (ii) 301,161          -                 301,161        -                   
Specialised land 504,800          -                 -                  504,800         
Total of land at fair value 805,961        -                301,161      504,800      

Buildings at fair value
Non-specialised buildings (ii) 912,000          -                 912,000        -                   
Specialised buildings 12,824,500     -                 -                  12,824,500    
Total of building at fair value 13,736,500  -                912,000      12,824,500 

Land Improvements at fair value 90,500           -                -                  90,500          

Plant and Equipment at fair value 612,445          -                 -                  612,445         

Computer and Communication at fair value 21,742           -                 -                  21,742          

Furniture and Fittings at fair value 86,324           -                 -                  86,324          

Motor Vehicles at fair value 57,079           -                 57,079         -                   

15,410,551  -                1,270,240  14,140,311 

Level 1 (i) Level 2 (i) Level 3 (i)

Balance at 30 June 2018 $ $ $ $
Land at fair value
Non-specialised land -                    -                 -                  -                  
Specialised land 341,918          -                 -                  341,918         
Total of land at fair value 341,918        -                -                 341,918      

Buildings at fair value
Non-specialised buildings -                    -                 -                  -                   
Specialised buildings 15,126,037     -                 -                  15,126,037    
Total of building at fair value 15,126,037  -                -                 15,126,037 

Land Improvements at fair value 11,964           -                -                  11,964          

Plant and Equipment at fair value 701,376          -                 -                  701,376         

Computer and Communication at fair value 44,413           -                 -                  44,413          

Furniture and Fittings at fair value 103,146          -                 -                  103,146         

Motor Vehicles at fair value 67,181           -                 67,181         -                   

16,396,035  -                67,181        16,328,854 

i Classified in accordance with the fair value hierarchy.
(ii) There has been a transfer between non-specialised land and buildings to reflect the correct fair value as per the Valuer-
General revaluation in 2019.

Carrying 
Amount

Fair value measurement at end of 
reporting period using:

Carrying 
Amount

Fair value measurement at end of 
reporting period using:
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Note 4.2: Property, plant & equipment (continued)

(d) Reconciliation of Level 3 Fair Value measurement¹

 

$ $ $ $ $ $

Balance at 1 July 2018 341,918   15,126,037 11,964           701,376     44,413             103,146     

Additions/(Disposals) -                -                   -                      19,715         -                       -                  
Transfer between Level 2 and Level 3 (301,161)   (912,000)       -                      -                  -                       -                  

Gains or losses recognised in net result
- Depreciation -                (588,108)       (477)                (108,645)      (22,672)             (16,822)        

Items recognised in other comprehensive income
- Revaluation 464,043     (801,429)       79,013             -                  -                       -                  

Balance at 30 June 2019 504,800   12,824,500 90,500           612,446     21,741             86,324        

 

$ $ $ $ $ $

Balance at 1 July 2017 341,918   11,585,627 12,442           748,810     67,146             117,550     

Additions/(Disposals) -                2,563,486     -                      66,291         -                       2,267           

Gains or losses recognised in net result
- Depreciation -                (728,936)       (478)                (113,725)      (22,733)             (16,671)        

Items recognised in other comprehensive income
- Revaluation -                1,705,860     -                      -                  -                       -                  

Balance at 30 June 2018 341,918   15,126,037 11,964           701,376     44,413             103,146     

Furniture & 
Fittings

Computers & 
CommunicationLand Buildings

Land 
Improvements

Plant and 
Equipment

Furniture & 
FittingsLand Buildings

Land 
Improvements

Plant and 
Equipment

Computers & 
Communication
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Note 4.2: Property, plant & equipment (continued)

(e) Fair Value Determination

Asset class Likely valuation 
approach

Significant inputs 
(Level 3 only)(c) 

Specialised Land Market approach
Community Service 
Obligations 
Adjustments (a)

- Cost per  square 
metre
- Useful life

- Direct replacement 
cost

- Useful life

Market approach n.a.

- Cost per unit

- Useful life

- Cost per  unit

- Useful life

- Cost per unit

- Useful life

- Cost per unit

- Useful life

(a) The level of the CSO allowance applied is 20% as per the Valuer-General Victoria re-valuation

(f) Revaluation Surplus

2019 2018
$ $

Property, Plant and Equipment Revaluation Surplus 
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 5,831,404                  4,125,544                
Revaluation Increment
 - Land (refer Note 4.2(b)) 543,057                     -                              
 - Buildings (801,430) 1,705,860                
Balance at the end of the reporting period* 5,573,031                5,831,404              

* Represented by: 
 - Land 544,961                     82,000                     
 - Buildings 5,028,070                  5,749,404                

5,573,031                5,831,404              

Plant and equipment
Depreciated 
replacement cost 
approach

Computers and Communication
Depreciated 
replacement cost 
approach

Furniture and Fittings
Depreciated 
replacement cost 
approach

Landscaping and Grounds
Depreciated 
replacement cost 
approach

Vehicles Depreciated 
replacement cost 
approach

Specialised buildings
Depreciated 
replacement cost 
approach
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Note 4.3: Depreciation 
2019 2018

$ $
 
Buildings 588,108 728,936
Land Improvements 477 478
Plant & Equipment 105,904 112,181
Motor Vehicles 38,070 12,563
Computer and Communications 22,672 22,733
Furniture and Fittings 16,822 16,671
Loddon Mallee Rural Health Alliance 2,741 1,544
TOTAL DEPRECIATION 774,794 895,106

Depreciation

2019 2018

6 to 56 years 5 to 50 years

6 to 56 years 5 to 50 years

6 to 56 years 5 to 50 years
6 to 56 years 5 to 50 years
3 to 25 years 5 to 25 years
3 to 15 years 5 to 15 years

5 years 5 years
3 to 10 years 3 years
3 to 20 years 6 to 20 years

As part of the buildings valuation, building values were separated into components and each component
assessed for its useful life which is represented above.

All infrastructure assets, buildings, plant and equipment and other non-financial physical assets (excluding
items under operating leases, assets held for sale, land and investment properties) that have finite useful
lives are depreciated. Depreciation is generally calculated on a straight-line basis at rates that allocate the
asset’s value, less any estimated residual value over its estimated useful life (refer AASB 116 Property, 
Plant and Equipment ). 

The following table indicates the expected useful lives of non-current assets on which the depreciation
charges are based.

Plant & Equipment
 - Trunk Reticulated Building Systems

Motor Vehicles

Furniture and Fitting
Computers and Communication

Medical Equipment

 - Fit Out
Central Plant

Buildings

 - Site Engineering Services and Central Plant

 - Structure Shell Building Fabric
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Note 5: Other Assets and Liabilities

This section sets out those assets and liabilities that arose from Boort District Health's operations.

Structure
5.1 Receivables
5.2 Payables
5.3 Other liabilities
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Note 5.1: Receivables
2019 2018

$ $
CURRENT
Contractual

Inter Hospital Debtors 36,814              52,850               
Trade Debtors 108,225            95,058               
Patient Fees 36,006              41,596               
Accrued Revenue - Other 225,359            110,716             
Loddon Mallee Rural Health Alliance Receivables 11,808              10,195               

418,212          310,415           
Statutory

GST Receivable 97,187              59,425               
Loddon Mallee Rural Health Alliance GST Receivables 1,811                3,922                 

98,998            63,347             
TOTAL CURRENT RECEIVABLES 517,210          373,762           

NON-CURRENT
Statutory

 Long Service Leave - Department of Health and Human Services 36,443              29,902               
36,443            29,902             

TOTAL NON-CURRENT RECEIVABLES 36,443            29,902             

TOTAL RECEIVABLES 553,653          403,664           

(a) Movement in the Allowance for impairment losses of contractual receivables
2019 2018

$ $

     Balance at the beginning of year - BDH -                       52,941               
     Reversal of allowances written off during the year as uncollectable -                       -                        
     Reversal of unused allowance recognised in the net result -                       -                        
     Increase in allowance recognised in the net result -                       (52,941)              
Balance at end of year -                      -                       

Impairment loses of contractual receivables

Receivables are subject to impairment loss assessment in accordance with AASB 9's expected credit loss model
and the impairment loss allowance is increased accordingly with the impairment expense recognised in the net
result as an 'other economic flow'. However, when it becomes mutually agreed between debtor and creditor that
the receivable has become uncollectible, the carrying amount of the receivable needs to be reduced, and a bad
debt expense for the write-off recognised in the net result as a transaction. Accordingly at the same time, the
amount in the provision together with its related impairment impairment expense initially recognised as an 'other
economic flow' will need to be reversed. 
Where the bad debt is written off following a unilateral decision, the carrying amount of the receivable needs to
be reduced, and a bad debt expense for the write-off recognised in the net result as an 'other economic flow'.
Accordingly at the same time, the amount in the provision together with its related impairment expense will need
to be reversed.

In assessing impairment of statutory (non-contractual) financial assets, which are not financial instruments,
professional judgement is applied in assessing materiality using estimates, averages and other computational
methods in accordance with AASB 136 Impairment of Assets.

Boort District Health is not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group
of counterparties having similar characteristics. Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers in
various geographical areas. Based on historical information about customer default rates, management consider
the credit quality of trade receivables that are not past due or impaired to be good.

Refer to Note 7.1 Contractual receivables at amortised costs for Boort District Health's contractual impairment
losses.

Trade debtors are carried at nominal amounts due and are due for settlement within 30 days from the date of
recognition. 

Receivables recognition
Receivables consist of:

•     Statutory receivables, which predominantly includes amounts owing from the Victorian Government and
Goods and Services Tax (GST) input tax credits recoverable. Statutory receivables do not arise from contracts
and are recognised and measured similarly to contractual receivables (except for impairment), but are classified
as financial instruments for disclosure purposes. Boort District Health applies AASB 9 for initial measurement of
the statutory receivables and as a result statutory receivables are initially recognised at fair value plus any
directly attributable transaction cost.

•     Contractual receivables, which consists of debtors in relation to goods and services and accrued investment
income. These receivables are classified as financial instruments and categorised as financial assets are
amortised costs'. They are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Boort
District Health holds the contractual receivables with the objective to collect the contractual cash flows and
therefore subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective method, less any impairment.
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Note 5.2: Payables
2019 2018

$ $
CURRENT
Contractual
Trade Creditors 53,824          472,415         
Accrued Salaries and Wages 87,230          69,827           
Accrued Expenses 24,120          5,950             
Accrued Audit Fees 16,500          12,030           
Inter- Hospital Creditors 10,490          12,450           
Other Payables 27,085          8,844             
Loddon Mallee Rural Health Alliance 36,866          37,019           

256,115      618,535       

Statutory
PAYG Payable 61,598          8,788             
GST Payable 17,078          60,302           
TOTAL CURRENT PAYABLES 78,676        69,090         
TOTAL  PAYABLES 334,791      687,625       

Payables consist of:

Maturity analysis of payables

Note 5.3: Other Liabilities
2019 2018

$ $
CURRENT
Monies Held in Trust*
   - Accommodation Bonds (Refundable Entrance Fees) 2,073,110 3,051,061
Total Current 2,073,110 3,051,061

* Total Monies Held in Trust
Represented by the following assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents (refer to Note 6.1) 2,073,110 211,347
Other Financial Assets (refer to Note 4.1) -                   2,839,714
TOTAL 2,073,110 3,051,061

- statutory payables, that are recognised and measured similarly to contractual payables, but are not classified as
financial instruments and not included in the category of financial liabilities at amortised cost, because they do not
arise from contracts. 

- contractual payables, classified as financial instruments and measured at amortised cost. Accounts paybale and
salaries and wages payable represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Boort District Health prior to
the end of the financial year that are unpaid; and

Please refer to Note 7.1(b) for the ageing analysis of payables.

The normal credit terms for accounts payable are usually Nett 60 days.

Payables Recognition
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Note 6: How we Finance Our Operations

This section provides information on the sources of finance utilised by Boort District Health during its operations, along with 
interest expenses (the cost of borrowings) and other information related to financing activities of the hospital.

This section includes disclosures of balances that are financial instruments (such as borrowings and cash balances). Note: 7.1 
provides additional, specific financial instrument disclosures.

Structure
6.1 Cash and Cash Equivalents
6.2 Commitments for Expenditure
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Note 6.1: Cash and Cash Equivalents

2019 2018
$ $

Cash on Hand 205 205
Cash at Bank (excluding Monies Held in Trust) 2,200,456 260,699
Cash at Bank (Monies Held in Trust) 2,073,110 3,051,061
TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 4,273,771 3,311,965

Note 6.2: Commitments for Expenditure
2019 2018

$ $

Capital Expenditure Commitments
Less than 1 year 402,616                          - 
Total Capital Expenditure Commitments 402,616                          - 

Capital Expenditure commitments disclosed at 30 June 2019 relate to the redevelopment of the Dental Clinic.

Cash and cash equivalents recognised on the Balance Sheet comprise cash on hand and in banks, deposits at call
and highly liquid investments (with an original maturity of three months or less), which are held for the purpose of
meeting short term cash commitments rather than for investment purposes, which are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

For cash flow statement presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents include bank overdrafts, which are
included as liabilities on the Balance Sheet.  The cash flow statement includes monies held in trust.

Commitments for future expenditure include capital commitments arising from contracts. These commitments are
disclosed at their nominal value and are inclusive of the GST payable. In addition, where it is considered
appropriate and provides additional relevant information to users, the net present values of significant projects are
stated. These future expenditures cease to be disclosed as commitments once the related liabilities are recognised
on the Balance Sheet.
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Note 7: Risks, Contingencies & Valuation Uncertainties

Structure
7.1 Financial Instruments 
7.2 Contingent Assets and Contingent Liabilities

Boort District Health is exposed to risk from its activities and outside factors. In addition, it is often necessary to make
judgements and estimates associated with recognition and measurement of items in the financial statements. This section sets
out financial instrument specific information, (including exposures to financial risks) as well as those items that are contingent in
nature or require a higher level of judgement to be applied, which for the hospital is related mainly to fair value determination.

Page 32 of 44

FINANCIAL REPORT



69

Annual Report 2018 / 2019

Boort District Health 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended 30 June 2019

Note 7.1: Financial Instruments

Financial Assets at 
Amortised Cost

Financial Liabilities 
at Amortised Cost Total

2019 $ $ $
Contractual Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4,273,771               -                         4,273,771               
Receivables
 - Trade Debtors 181,045                  -                         181,045                  
 - Other Receivables 237,167                  -                         237,167                  
Total Financial Assets (i) 4,691,983             -                        4,691,983             

Financial Liabilities
Payables -                         256,115                  256,115                  
Other Financial Liabilities
- Accommodation Bonds -                         2,073,110               2,073,110               
Total Financial Liabilities (i) -                        2,329,225             2,329,225             

Contractual 
Financial Assets - 

Loans and 
Receivables and 

Cash

Contractual 
Financial Liabilities 
at Amortised Cost Total

2018 $ $ $
Contractual Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3,311,965               -                         3,311,965               
Receivables
 - Trade Debtors 189,504                  -                         189,504                  
 - Other Receivables 120,911                  -                         120,911                  
Investments and Other Financial Assets
 - Term Deposit 2,839,714               -                         2,839,714               
Total Financial Assets (i) 6,462,094             -                        6,462,094             

Financial Liabilities
Payables -                         618,535                  618,535                  
Other Financial Liabilities
- Accommodation Bonds -                         3,051,061               3,051,061               
Total Financial Liabilities (i) -                        3,669,596             3,669,596             

Financial instruments arise out of contractual agreements that give rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity. Due to the nature of Boort District Health's activities, certain financial assets and financial liabilities arise under statute rather than a
contract. Such financial assets and financial liabilities do not meet the definition of financial instruments in AASB 132 Financial Instruments:
Presentation. 

•      the assets' contractual terms give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interests.

These assets are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less any impairment.

Categories of financial assets under AASB 9

Financial assets at amortised cost

i The carrying amount excludes statutory receivables (i.e. GST receivable and DHHS receivable) and statutory payables (i.e. Revenue in Advance and
DHHS payable).

From 1 July 2018, Boort District Health applies AASB 9 and classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the asset and
the asset's contractual terms.

Financial assets are measured at amortised costs if both of the following criteria are met and the assets are not designated as fair value through net
result:
•      The assets are held by Boort District Health to collect the contractual cash flows, and

The department recognises the following assets in this category:
•      cash and deposits
•      receivables (excluding statutory receivables);
•      term deposits; and
•      certain debt securities.
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Note 7.1: Financial Instruments (continued)

(b) Maturity Analysis of Financial Liabilities as at 30 June 2019

Note Carrying Amount
Nominal 
Amount

Less than 1 
Month

1-3 Months 3 months - 1 
Year

1-5 Years

2019 $ $ $ $ $ $
Financial Liabilities
At amortised cost
  Payables 5.2 256,115                256,115          256,115          -                    -                    -                    
  Other Financial Liabilities (i)
   - Accommodation Bonds 5.3 2,073,110             2,073,110       300,000          500,000          1,273,110       -                    
Total Financial Liabilities 2,329,225           2,329,225     556,115        500,000        1,273,110     -                    

2018
Financial Liabilities
At amortised cost
  Payables 5.2 618,535                618,535          618,535          -                    -                    -                    
Other Financial Liabilities (i)
   - Accommodation Bonds 5.3 3,051,061             3,051,061       -                    -                    3,051,061       -                    
Total Financial Liabilities 3,669,596           3,669,596     618,535        -                    3,051,061     -                    

(c) Contractual receivables at amortised costs

1-Jul-19 Current 1 month 1-3 months 3 months to 1 
year 1 - 5 years Total

$ $ $ $ $ $
Expected loss rate 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

339,882                24,995           4,058             4,265             33,205           406,404          
Loss Allowance -                      -                -                -                -                -                    

1-Jul-18 $ $ $ $ $ $
Expected loss rate 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

240,973                32,104           3,005             3,124             21,014           300,220          
Loss Allowance -                      -                -                -                -                -                    

2019 2018
Balance at beginning of the year -                    -                    
Opening retained earnings adjustment on adoption of AASB 9 -                    -                                  
Opening Loss Allowance -                    -                    
Modification of contractual cash flows on financial assets -                                  -                                  
Increase in provision recognised in the net result -                    -                    
Reversal of provision of receivables written off during the year as uncollectable -                    -                    
Reversal of unused provision recognised in the net result -                    -                                  
Balance at end of the year -                    -                    

Gross Carrying amount of contractual receivables

Gross Carrying amount of contractual receivables

Impairment of financial assets under AASB 9 - applicable from 1 July 2018

From 1 July 2018, Boort District Health has been recording the allowance for expected credit loss for the relevant financial instruments, replacing AASB 139's incurred
loss approach with AASB 9's Expected Credit Loss approach. Subject to AASB 9 impairment assessment include the Boort District Health's contractual receivables
excluding statutory receivables.

Equity instruments are not subject to impairment under AASB 9. Other financial assets mandatorily measured or designated at fair value through net result are not
subject to impairment assessment under AASB9. While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment requirements of AASB 9, the identified impairment
loss was immaterial.

Contractual receivables at amortised cost

The Boort District Health applies AASB 9 simplified approach for all contractual receivables to measure expected credit losses using a lifetime expected loss allowance
based on the assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Boort District Health has grouped contractual receivables on shared credit risk
characteristics and days past due and select the expected credit loss rate based on the Department's history, existing market conditions, as well as forward-looking
estimates at the end of the financial year.

On this basis, the Boort District Health determines the opening loss allowance on initial application date of AASB 9 and the closing loss allowance at end of the financial
year as disclosed above.

The statutory receivables are considered to have low credit risk, taking into account the counterparty's credit rating, risk of default and capacity to meet contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term. As a result, the loss allowance recognised for these financial assets during the period was limited to 12 months expected loses. No
loss allowance recognised at 30 June 2018 under AASB 139.  No additional loss allowance required upon transition into AASB 9 on 1 July 2018.

Reconciliation of the movement in the loss allowance for contractual receivables

Credit loss allowance is classified as other economic flows in the net result. Contractual receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery
and impairment of losses are classified as a transaction expense.  Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the same line item.

In prior years, a provision for doubtful debts is recognised when there is objective evidence that the debts may not be collected and bad debts are written off when
identified. A provision is made for estimated irrecoverable amounts from the sale of goods when there is objective evidence that an individual receivable is impaired.
Bad debts considered as written off by mutual consent.
Statutory receivables and debt investments at amortised cost (ASSB2016-8.4)
The Boort District Health's non-contractual receivables arising from statutory requirements are not financial instruments. However, they are nevertheless recognised and
measured in accordance with AASB 9 requirements as if those receivables are financial instruments.

(i) Ageing analysis of financial liabilities excludes statutory financial liabilities (i.e GST payable)

Maturity Dates

Loans and receivables and cash are financial instrument assets with fixed and determinable payments that are not quoted on an active market. These assets and
liabilities are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial measurement, loans and receivables are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method (and for assets, less any impairment). The Boort District Health recognises the following assets in this category:

Derecognition of financial assets: A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired.

Derecognition of financial liabilities: A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Impairment of financial assets: At the end of each reporting period, the Boort District Health assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group
of financial assets is impaired. All financial instrument assets, except those measured at fair value through profit or loss, are subject to annual review for impairment.

The allowance is the difference between the financial asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest
rate. In assessing impairment of statutory (non-contractual) financial assets, which are not financial instruments, professional judgement is applied in assessing
materiality using estimates, averages and other computational methods in accordance with AASB 136 Impairment of Assets .

The following table discloses the contractual maturity analysis for Boort District Health's financial liabilities. For interest rates applicable to each class of liability refer to 
individual notes to the financial statements.

Categories of financial assets previously under AASB 139

•      cash and deposits
•      receivables (excluding statutory receivables);
•      term deposits; and
•      certain debt securities.
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Note 7.2: Contingent Assets & Contingent Liabilities

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet, but are disclosed by way of note and, if quantifiable,
are measured at nominal value. Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are presented inclusive of GST receivable or payable
respectively.

Boort District Health is not aware of any contingent assets and liabilities at 30 June 2019.
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Note 8: Other Disclosures

This section includes additional material disclosures required by accounting standards or otherwise, for the understanding of this 
financial report.

Structure
8.1 Reconciliation of Net Result for the Year to Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities
8.2 Responsible Persons
8.3 Remuneration of Executives
8.4 Related Parties
8.5 Remuneration of Auditors
8.6 Events Occurring after the Balance Sheet Date
8.7 Jointly Controlled Operations 
8.8 Economic Dependency
8.9 AASBs Issued that are not yet Effective
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2019 2018
$ $

Net result for the Year (515,869) (24,201)

Non-cash movements:
Depreciation 774,794 895,106
Indirect Capital Grants from DHHS -                         (40,660)

Movements included in investing and financing activites:

Net (Gain)/Loss from Disposal of Non-Financial Physical Assets (5,299) (27,619)

Movements in assets and liabilities:
Change in operating assets and liabilities
   (Increase)/Decrease in Receivables (149,988) (44,096)
   (Increase)/Decrease in Prepayments (12,424) (43)
   Increase/(Decrease) in Payables (352,834) 13,007
   Increase/(Decrease) in Provisions 103,995 342,444
   (Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (10,745) 23,071
   (Increase)/Decrease in Jointly Controlled Operations -                         7,131
NET CASH INFLOW/(OUTFLOW) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (168,370) 1,144,140

Note 8.1: Reconciliation of the net result for the year to net cash from operating activities
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Note 8.2: Responsible Persons Disclosures

Responsible Ministers: 

Governing Boards
Mrs W Gladman (Board Chair)
Mr A Ferguson
Mr G Malone
Mrs M Eicher
Ms D Sherringham
Mr R Stomann
Mrs Lee-Anne Sherwell
Mr Laurie Maxted
Mrs S Anderson

Accountable Officers
Mr Darren Clarke

Remuneration of Responsible Persons

2019 2018
Income Band No. No.
$0 - $9,999 9 10
$140,000 - $149,999           - 1
$150,000 - $159,999 1          -
Total Numbers 10 11

2019 2018
$ $

$180,132 $162,375       

Note 8.3: Remuneration of Executives

Remuneration of Executive Officers 2019 2018
(including Key Management Personnel Disclosed in Note 8.5) $ $
Short term employee benefits 91,111 110,368
Post-employment benefits 8,656            8,846
Other long-term benefits -                   -                     
Termination benefits -                   -                     
Total Remuneration i $99,767 $119,214

Total Number of Executives 1 1
Total Annualised Employee Equivalent ii 1 1

01/07/2018 - 30/06/2019

Period
01/07/2018 - 29/11/2018
29/11/2018 - 30/06/2019

The number of Responsible Persons are shown in their relevant income bands:

The Honourable Jill Hennessy, Minister for Health and Minister for Ambulance Services
The Honourable Jenny Mikakos, Minister for Health and Minister for Ambulance Services

The Honourable Martin Foley, Minister for Housing, Disability and Ageing

01/07/2018 - 30/06/2019
01/07/2018 - 30/06/2019

01/07/2018 - 30/06/2019

01/07/2018 - 30/06/2019

In accordance with the Ministerial Directions issued by the Assistant Treasurer under the Financial Management Act 1994, the following disclosures
are made regarding responsible persons for the reporting period.

01/07/2018 - 30/06/2019

01/07/2018 - 30/06/2019
01/07/2018 - 30/06/2019
01/07/2018 - 30/06/2019

01/07/2018 - 30/06/2019

01/07/2018 - 30/06/2019
01/07/2018 - 29/11/2018
29/11/2018 - 30/06/2019The Honourable Luke Donnellan, Minister for Child Protection, Minister for Disability, Ageing and Carers

The Honourable Martin Foley, Minister for Mental Health

Total remuneration received or due and receivable by Responsible Persons from the 
reporting entity amounted to:

Termination Benefits include termination of employment payments, such as severance packages.
Other long-term benefits include long service leave, other long-service benefit or deferred compensation. 
Post-employment benefits include pensions and other retirement benefits paid or payable on a discrete basis when employment has ceased. 

Short-term employee benefits include amounts such as wages, salaries, annual leave or sick leave that are usually paid or payable on a regular
basis, as well as non-monetary benefits such as allowances and free or subsidised goods or services. 

Remuneration comprises employee benefits in all forms of consideration paid, payable or provided in exchange of services rendered, and is disclosed
in the following categories:

The numbers of executive officers, other than Ministers and Accountable Officers, and their total remuneration during the reporting period are shown 
in the table below. Total annualised employee equivalent provides a measure of full time equivalent executive officers over the reporting period. 

i The total number of executive officers includes persons who meet the definition of Key Management Personnel (KMP) of Boort District Health under
AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures and are also reported within Note 8.4 Related Parties. 
ii Annualised employee equivalent is based on working 38 ordinary hours per week over the reporting period.
Total remuneration payable to executives during the year included additional executive officers and a number of executives who received bonus
payments during the year. These bonus payments depend on the terms of individual employment contracts.

Total Remuneration

Amounts relating to Responsible Ministers are reported within the Department of Parliamentary Services' Financial Report.
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Note 8.4: Related Parties

Entity KMPs Position Title
Boort District Health Mrs W Gladman (Board Chair) Chair of the Board
Boort District Health Mr G Malone Chair of Audit & Risk
Boort District Health Mr A Ferguson Board Member
Boort District Health Mrs M Eicher Board Member
Boort District Health Ms D Sherringham Board Member
Boort District Health Mrs Lee-Anne Sherwell Board Member
Boort District Health Mr Laurie Maxted Board Member
Boort District Health Mr R Stomann Audit & Risk Committee Member
Boort District Health Mrs S Anderson Audit & Risk Committee Member
Boort District Health Mr Darren Clarke Chief Executive Officer
Boort District Health Ms Donna Doyle Director of Nursing

                                   2019                                                  2018
                                 $                                                   $

Compensation - KMPs
Short term employee benefits 240,296                                244,498                                             
Post-employment benefits 39,603                                  37,091                                               
Termination Benefits -                                       -                                                    
Total (i) 279,899                              281,589                                           

Boort District Health is a wholly owned and controlled entity of the State of Victoria. Related parties of the Boort
District Health include:

·       All hospitals and public sector entities that are controlled and consolidated into the State of Victoria
financial statements.
KMPs are those people with the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities
of Boort District Health and its controlled entities, directly or indirectly. 
The Board of Directors, Chief Executive Officer and the Executive Directors of Boort District Health and it's
controlled entities are deemed to be KMPs.

·        Jointly Controlled Operation - A member of the Loddon Mallee Rural Health Alliance Joint Venture; and

·        All key management personnel (KMP) and their close family members;
·        Cabinet ministers (where applicable) and their close family members;

The Standing Directions of the Minister for Finance require Boort District Health to hold cash (in excess of
working capital) in accordance with the State’s centralised banking arrangements. All borrowings are required to
be sourced from Treasury Corporation Victorian unless an exemption has been approved by the Minister for
Health and Human Services and the Treasurer.

Professional medical indemnity insurance and other insurance products are obtained from the Victorian Managed
Insurance Authority. 

Expenses incurred by Boort District Health in delivering services and outputs are in accordance with Health
Purchasing Victoria requirements. Goods and services including procurement, diagnostics, patient meals and
multi-site operational support are provided by other Victorian Health Service Providers on commercial terms.

The compensation detailed below excludes the salaries and benefits the Portfolio Ministers receive. The
Minister’s remuneration and allowances is set by the Parliamentary Salaries and Superannuation Act 1968 , and
is reported within the Department of Parliamentary Services’ Financial Report.

Boort District Health received funding from the Department of Health and Human Services of $3.74m ($3.68m
in 2017-18)

Compensation

(i) KMPs are also reported in Note 8.2 Responsible Persons or Note 8.3 Remuneration of Executives. 

Significant transactions with government related entities
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Note 8.4: Related Parties (continued)
Transactions with key management personnel and other related parties

Note 8.5: Remuneration of auditors

Victorian Auditor-General's Office 2019 2018
                                     $                                       $

Audit of the Financial Statements 16,500                            16,500                            

TOTAL 16,500 16,500

Note 8.6: Events occurring after the balance sheet date

There are no events occurring after the Balance Sheet Date.

There were no related party transactions required to be disclosed for the Boort District Health Board of Directors,
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Directors in 2019.

Outside of normal citizen type transactions with the Boort District Health, there were no related party transactions
that involved key management personnel, their close family members and their personal business interests. No
provision has been required, nor any expense recognised, for impairment of receivables from related parties. There
were no related party transactions with Cabinet Ministers required to be disclosed in 2019.

Given the breadth and depth of State government activities, related parties transact with the Victorian public sector in
a manner consistent with other members of the public e.g. stamp duty and other government fees and charges.
Further employment of processes within the Victorian public sector occur on terms and conditions consistent with the
Public Administration Act 2004 and Codes of Conduct and Standards issued by the Victorian Public Sector Commission.
Procurement processes occur on terms and conditions consistent with the Victorian Government Procurement Board
requirements. 

Page 40 of 44

FINANCIAL REPORT



77

Annual Report 2018 / 2019

Boort District Health 
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended 30 June 2019

Note 8.7:  Jointly Controlled Operations

Name of entity Principal Activity 2019 2018
Loddon Mallee Rural Health Alliance Information Technology 2.34% 2.41%

The amounts are included in the financial statements under their respective asset categories:

2019 2018
$ $

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 116,097 126,046
Receivables 13,618 16,520
Prepayments 29,676 13,024
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 159,391 155,590

NON CURRENT ASSETS
Property, Plant and Equipment 13,408 13,571
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 13,408 13,571
TOTAL ASSETS 172,799 169,161

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payables 3,466 31,898
Accrued Expenses 33,399 5,120
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 36,865 37,018
TOTAL LIABILITIES 36,865 37,018
NET ASSETS 135,934 132,143

2019 2018
$ $

REVENUES
Revenue from Continuing Operations 185,617 179,263
Capital Purpose Income 4,882 0
TOTAL REVENUE 190,499 179,263

EXPENSES
Other Expenses from Continuing Operations 186,706 190,007
TOTAL EXPENSES 186,706 190,007
NET RESULT 3,793 (10,744)

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Note 8.8:  Economic Dependency

Boort District Health is dependent on the Department of Health and Human Services for the majority of its revenue used to operate the 
entity.  At the date of this report, the Board of Directors has no reason to believe the Department will not continue to support Boort 
District Health.

Ownership Interest

Boort District Health's interest in the above jointly controlled operations and assets is detailed below.

There are no known contingent liabilities or capital commitments held by the jointly controlled operations at balance date.

Boort District Health's interest in revenues and expenses resulting from jointly controlled operations and assets is detailed below:
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Note 8.9: AASBs issued that are not yet effective

Standard/ Interpretation Summary
Applicable for annual 

reporting periods 
beginning on

Impact on public sector entity financial 
statements

AASB 15 Revenue from 
Contracts with Customers

The core principle of AASB 15 requires 
an entity to recognise revenue when the 
entity satisfies a performance obligation 
by transferring a promised good or 
service to a customer. Note that 
amending standard AASB 2015 8 
Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards – Effective Date of AASB 15 
has deferred the effective date of AASB 
15 to annual reporting periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2018, instead of 1 
January 2017 for Not-for-Profit entities.

1-Jan-19

The changes in revenue recognition 
requirements in AASB 15 may result in 
changes to the timing and amount of revenue 
recorded in the financial statements. 
Revenue from grants that are provided under 
an enforceable agreement that have 
sufficiently specific obligations, will now be 
deferred and recognised as the performance 
obligations attached to the grant are satisfied.

The standard is not expected to have a 
significant impact to Boort District Health. 
There are no grants or fees for service 
received by BDH that would be accounted for 
differently under AASB15.

AASB 2018-4 provides additional guidance 
for not-for-profit public sector licenses, which 
include:

·       Matters to consider in 
distinguishing between a tax and a 
license, with all taxes being 
accounted for under AASB 1058; 
·       IP licenses to be accounted for 
under AASB 15; and 

·       Non-IP, such as casino licenses, 
are to be accounted for in accordance 
with the principles of AASB 15 after 
first having determined whether any 
part of the arrangement should be 
accounted for as a lease under AASB 
16.

The standard is not expected to have 
a significant impact to Boort District 
Health.

This standard clarifies the application of 
AASB 15 and AASB 9 in a not-for-profit 
context. The areas within these standards 
that are amended for not-for-profit application 
include:

AASB 9 

•       Statutory receivables are 
recognised and measured similarly to 
financial assets. 

AASB 15

•       The ‘customer’ does not need to 
be the recipient of goods and/or 
services;
•       The “contract” could include an 
arrangement entered into under the 
direction of another party;

•       Contracts are enforceable if they 
are enforceable by legal or 
‘equivalent means’;

•       Contracts do not have to have 
commercial substance, only economic 
substance; and

·       Performance obligations need to 
be ‘sufficiently specific’ to be able to 
apply AASB 15 to these transactions.

The standard is not expected to have 
any significant impact to Boort District 
Health.

The table below is provided to assist entities in updating their disclosure in relation to the Australian
accounting standards that are issued but not yet effective for 2018-19 in accordance with paragraph 30 of
AASB 108.

Certain new Australian accounting standards have been published that are not mandatory for the 30 June
2019 reporting period. Department of Treasury and Finance assesses the impact of all these new standards
and advises Boort District Health of their applicability and early adoption where applicable.

AASB 2018-4 Amendments to 
Australian Accounting 
Standards – Australian 
Implementation Guidance for 
Not‑for-Profit Public-Sector 
Licensors

AASB 2018-4 amends AASB 15 and 
AASB 16 to provide guidance for 
revenue recognition in connection with 
taxes and Non-IP licences for Not-for-
Profit entities. 

1-Jan-19

AASB 2016-8 Amendments to 
Australian Accounting 
Standards – Australian 
Implementation Guidance for 
Not‑for-Profit Entities

1-Jan-19
This Standard amends AASB 9 and 
AASB 15 to include requirements to 
assist not-for-profit entities in applying 
the respective standards to particular 
transactions and events.

AASB 2016-8 inserts Australian 
requirements and authoritative 
implementation guidance for not-for-
profit-entities into AASB 9 and AASB 15. 
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Note 8.9: AASBs issued that are not yet effective continued

Standard/ Interpretation Summary
Applicable for annual 

reporting periods 
beginning on

Impact on public sector entity financial 
statements

The assessment has indicated that most 
operating leases, with the exception of short 
term and low value leases will come on to the 
balance sheet and will be recognised as right 
of use assets with a corresponding lease 
liability. 

In the operating statement, the operating 
lease expense will be replaced by 
depreciation expense of the asset and an 
interest charge.

There will be no change for lessors as the 
classification of operating and finance leases 
remains unchanged.

Boort District Health do not hold any 
operating leases at this time, therefore there 
will be no expected impact of this standard.

Under AASB 1058, not-for-profit entities are 
required to measure right-of-use assets at fair 
value at initial recognition for leases that have 
significantly below-market terms and 
conditions. 

For right-of-use assets arising under leases 
with significantly below market terms and 
conditions principally to enable the entity to 
further its objectives (peppercorn leases), 
AASB 2018-8 provides a temporary option for 
Not-for-Profit entities to measure at initial 
recognition, a class or classes of right-of-use 
assets at cost rather than at fair value and 
requires disclosure of the adoption. 
The State has elected to apply the temporary 
option in AASB 2018-8 for not-for-profit 
entities to not apply the fair value provisions 
under AASB 1058 for these right-of-use 
assets. 
In making this election, the State considered 
that the methodology of valuing peppercorn 
leases was still being developed.

Boort District Health do not hold any 
operating leases that would need to be 
recognised under this standard.

AASB 1058 will replace the majority of 
income recognition in relation to 
government grants and other types of 
contributions requirements relating to 
public sector not-for-profit entities, 
previously in AASB 1004 Contributions . 

Grant revenue is currently recognised up 
front upon receipt of the funds under AASB 
1004 Contributions .

The restructure of administrative 
arrangement will remain under AASB 
1004 and will be restricted to 
government entities and contributions by 
owners in a public sector context,

The timing of revenue recognition for grant 
agreements that fall under the scope of 
AASB 1058 may be deferred. For example, 
revenue from capital grants for the 
construction of assets will need to be 
deferred and recognised progressively as 
the asset is being constructed.

AASB 1058 establishes principles for 
transactions that are not within the scope 
of AASB 15, where the consideration to 
acquire an asset is significantly less than 
fair value to enable not-for-profit entities 
to further their objective.

The impact on current revenue recognition 
of the changes is the potential phasing and  
deferral of revenue recorded in the 
operating statement.

There were no unexpended capital grants 
at 30 June 2019 that would be accounted 
for differently under AASB15.  Future 
capital grants will be recognised as the 
grant is expended.

AASB 16 Leases

The key changes introduced by AASB 16 
include the recognition of most operating 
leases (which are currently not 
recognised) on balance sheet.

1-Jan-19

AASB 2018-8 Amendments to 
Australian Accounting 
Standards – Right of Use 
Assets of Not-for-Profit entities

This standard amends various other 
accounting standards to provide an 
option for not-for-profit entities to not 
apply the fair value initial measurement 
requirements to a class or classes of 
right of use assets arising under leases 
with significantly below-market terms and 
conditions principally to enable the entity 
to further its objectives. This Standard 
also adds additional disclosure 
requirements to AASB 16 for not-for-
profit entities that elect to apply this 
option.

1-Jan-19

AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-
Profit Entities 1-Jan-19
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Note 8.9: AASBs issued that are not yet effective continued

Standard/ Interpretation Summary
Applicable for annual 

reporting periods 
beginning on

Impact on public sector entity financial 
statements

AASB 2018-7 Amendments to 
Australian Accounting 
Standards – Definition of 
Material

This Standard principally amends AASB 
101 Presentation of Financial 
Statements  and AASB 108 Accounting 
Policies, Changes in Accounting 
Estimates and Errors . The amendments 
refine and clarify the definition of material 
in AASB 101 and its application by 
improving the wording and aligning the 
definition across AASB Standards and 
other publications. The amendments 
also include some supporting 
requirements in AASB 101 in the 
definition to give it more prominence and 
clarify the explanation accompanying the 
definition of material.

1-Jan-20

The standard is not expected to have a 
significant impact on the public sector.

                     1-Jan-20
 (The State is 
intending to early 
adopt AASB 1059 for 
annual reporting 
periods beginning on 
or after 1 January 
2019)

•       AASB 2017-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

•       AASB 2017-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

•       AASB 2018-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Annual Improvements 2015 – 2017 Cycle

•       AASB 2018-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Plan Amendments, Curtailment or Settlement

•       AASB 2018-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements

•       AASB 2018-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Definition of a Business

In addition to the new standards and amendments above, the AASB has issued a list of other amending standards that are not effective for
the 2018-19 reporting period (as listed below). In general, these amending standards include editorial and references changes that are
expected to have insignificant impacts on public sector reporting.

AASB 2018-5 Amendments to 
Australian Accounting 
Standards – Deferral of AASB 
1059

This standard defers the mandatory 
effective date of AASB 1059 from 1 
January 2019 to 1 January 2020.

This standard defers the mandatory 
effective date of AASB 1059 for periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2019 to 1 
January 2020. As the State has elected to 
early adopt AASB 1059, the financial 
impact will be reported in the financial year 
ending 30 June 2019, rather than the 
following year.
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